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Lorl A. SbiUiKne

Commluiooer

Kjren E. Hcbert

Director

STATE OF NEW IL|^MPSHIR£
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABIiny

129 PLEASANT STREET, cJnCORD.NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-S00-8S2i334S ExL 9474

Fax:603-27M230 TDD Access: l-800|735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 17. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Cross| Roads House, Inc. (yc#177203),
Portsmouth, NH, for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Sen/ices,
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, to chronically homeless (CH) and disabled

$1,161,648 to $1,573,576 and by
2023, effective August 1, 2022, or

adults, by increasing the price limitation by $411,928 from
extending the completion date from July 31, 2022 to July 31
upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. lOOj'A Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and bouncil on July 31, 2019, item #23,
amended on August 26,2020, item #12, and most recently amended on July 14, 2021, item #9.

Funds are available in the follovwng account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, vnth thejauthority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95^2-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

SFY Class/

Account
Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Revised Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svcs

TBD $351,102 $0 $351,102

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $378,191 $0 $378,191

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $31,479 $0 $31,479

2022 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $367,470 $0 $367,470

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $33,406 $377,601 $411,007

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $34,327 $34,327

Total $1,161,648 $411,928 $1,573,576

TheDeparimtnt of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities ai^famUies
in providing opportunities for cUisens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Permanent Supportive Housing
program that delivers long-term, tenant-based rental assistance and supportive services to
disabled adults who are homeless, or chronically homeless, in Rocklngham, Stratford, and
Merrimack Counties. The Department is seeking to extend the contract lieyond the completion
date and available contract renewal optioiis in response to a directive from the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Notice of Funding Opportunity, to
provide an additional one (1) year of funding to the Contractor for this specific Continuum of Care
grant project.

Approximately twenty-eight (28) individuals and/or family units will be served annually.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor develops Stabilization
and Crisis Management plans and facilitates each participant's relocation to sustained pehnanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by:

• Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations v^hout needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Rockingham, Strafford and Merrimack Counties

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267. FAIN # NH0095L1T002106

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
("State" or "Department") and Cross Roads House, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019 (Item #23), as amended on August 26, 2020 (Item #12), and as most recently amended
on July 14, 2021 (Item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,573,576

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to All Services, by adding
Subsection 1.10., to read:

1.10. The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or remotely,
as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as othenvise requested by the
Department, which may include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0095L1T001803 (August 1, 2019 through July 31. 2020)

NH0095L1T001904 (August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021)

NH0095L1T002005 (August 1, 2021 through July 31. 2022)
NH0095L1T002106 (August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1 August 1, 2019 - July 31, 2023, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-37,
General Provisions, Block 1.8.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read: ,—ds

m
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A03 Cross Roads House, Inc. Contraclor Initials ^

5/20/2022
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date
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1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description August 1,
2019 through
July 31, 2020

August 1,
2020 through
July 31, 2021 '

August 1,
2021 through
July 31, 2022

August 1,
2022 through
July 31, 2023

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Rental Assistance $305,736 $300,468 $323,592 . $334,644 $1,264,440

1.2.8.2 Supportive Services $68,354 $68,354 $68,354 $68,354 $273,416

1.2.8.3 Administration $8,930 $8,930 $8,930 $8,930 $35,720

1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount $383,020 $377,752 $400,876 $411,928 $1,573,576

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match 25% $97,988 $96,670 $102,451 $105,215 $402,324

7. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A03

A-S-1.0

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2 of 4

m
Contractor Initials

Date
5/20/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective August 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/31/2022

Date

^OocuSigned by:

~.B?«rftrFRimA4iR

Name: Karen E. Hebert

Title: Director, DEHS

Cross Roads House, Inc.

5/20/2022

Date

-OocuSion«d by:

rM8DC*rCgCQ<g<

Name:wndolfo ArveTo

Executive Director

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A03

A-S-1.0

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

' E>ocuSiontd by:Pvocusigntd oy:
y407a4«f>(MUM.. :

Date Namer^obynCuanno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A03 Cross Roads House. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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CroM Roads House, Inc.

|CoC Funds - NH009SL1T002106

Exhibit B-3 Antcndment *3 Budget

SFY2023 - 8/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Acttvtty Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Rental Assistance W6,7$7 30e,7S7

Supportive Services
Admktistrstlon

25% Raqulrad Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

SFY2024 - 7/1/23-7/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 27.ee7

Supportive Services
Admlnblratlon

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUO FUNOSmALANCE

TOTAL - 8/1/22-7/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name

Rental Assistance

BUDGET

334.044

YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Supponhe Servtces
Adminlstrstion

25% Required Match
TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE

Total W/0 Match 411,928

Crou Aoads House, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-AC3

CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

Contractor Initials

Page) ol 1
S/20/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar>' ofSiatc of the Stale ofNcw Mampshlrc, do hereby certify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 24, 1982. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's ofllce have been received and is in good standing as far as this

odlce is concerned.

Business ID; 62166

Certificate Number: 00057833! I

oa.

O "9

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aflixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Vanda J. Moore, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Secretary/Officer of Cross Roads House, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 30, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Will Arvelo, Executive Director

is duly authorized on behalf of Cross Roads House, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instrurhents, and any amendrhents, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment b>e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not t)een amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days frorn the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 5/30/2022
Signature of Elected Officer
Name; Vanda J; Moore

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrtTYY)

05/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

RSC Insurance Brokerage, inc.

One New Hampshire Avenue

Suite 125

Portsmouth NH 03801

contact Meiisa Meeks

PHONE ffiOH 77ft.ftQ8S
fA«.No.E.n: tOOJJ (A/C.No):

AOD*ftesS' f"f"e«ks(§risk-strategies.com
INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity insurance Company 18058

INSURED

Cross Roads House, Inc.

600 Lafayette Rd

Portsmouth NH 03801

INSURER B Market Insurance Company 38970

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL2231763028 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF
(MM/DDWYYY)

POLICY EXP
IMHWO/YYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE

XD'DT
INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

UI5r
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGETO"REFTrCB
PREMISES fEa occufrencal

PHPK2368167 01/10/2022 01/10/2023

MED EXP (An'y one pwwi)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

PRO
JECTPOLICY □ Jgsp □ LOC

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Damage to Premises

1.000.000

5.000

1.000,000

3,000.000

3.000.000

1.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINEO-SINeLE LIMIT
lEa aedde«il
BODILY INJURY (Per pervxi)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par •eddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
tPer acddentl

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 6,000.000

PHUB799718 01/10/2022 01/10/2023 AGGREGATE 6.000.000

X RETENTION $ 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE
OFFICERTMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

B

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

SATIS0482200 01/10/2022 01/10/2023 E-L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlUonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

The Certificate Holder Is named as Additional Insured as per written contract.

Slate of NH

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



OocuSign Envelope ID; 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

Cross Roads House Mission:

At Cross Roads House:

• We protect men, women and children experiencing homelessness in the
Greater Seacoast area from exposure and hunger.

• We provide secure, transitional shelter for those seeking to break the
cycle of homelessness.

• We support individuals and families by providing them with the opportunity
to move with dignity and purpose to stable and decent housing.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2021
with Summarized Financial Information

for the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Sanders & Karcher

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cross Roads House, Inc.
(a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2021, which comprise the statement of
financial position and the related statements, of-activities - functional-expenses
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair'presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of. the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc. as of June
30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its' cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

-1-
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

financial statements, and wepressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in

inLml't'^ September 16, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparativeinformation presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 202O, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
Which It has been derived.

Other Matters

Other. information . .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
tatements as a whole. The schedule of findings and questioned costs is presented
or purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of these financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
ederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost

Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and

M  accordance with accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America, in our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued- our report
dated September 27, 2021, on our .consideration of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering whether Cross Roads House
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sfluvlcvzfe rScixircWj-
Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
September 27, 2021

-2-



CROSS

STATEMENT

ROADS HOUSE, INC.

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

2021 2020

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restriction Total Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses

$  1,193,855

4, 908

25,895

34,262

$

74,512

4,441

$  1,193,855

4, 908

74,512

30,336

34,262

$  1,149,170

17,796

133,308

36,703

38,282
Total current assets 1,258,920 78,953 1,337,873 1,375,259

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated

depreciation of $2,058,412 & $1,872,280,
respectively 4,962,653 4,962,653 4,657,579

OTHER ASSETS

Closing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $1,989 & $1,826, respectively
Cash and marketable securities, long-term
reserve

Beneficial interest in assets held by others

2, 610

'2,192,431
162,833

2, 610

2,192,431

162,833

2, 773

1,153,509

126,131
Total other assets 2,195,041 . 162,833 2,357,874 1,282,413

TOTAL ASSETS $  8.416.614 $  241.786 $  8,658.400 $  7,315.251

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

June 30,

2021

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restriction

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Deferred income

Long-term debt, current portion
Security deposits-Greenleaf Apartments
Accrued payroll items
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Board Designated
Undesignated
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

101,855

22,667

5,816

84,605

11,650

226,593

535,541

762,134

2,192,431

5,462,049

1  241,786
7,654,480 241,786

$  8.416.614 $ 241.786

Total'

101,855

22,667

5,816

84,605

11,650

226,593

535,541

762,134

2,192,431

5,462,049

241,786

7,896,266

$  8.658.400

2020

Total

27,118

180,000

21,497

6,576

72,401

13,650

321,242

557,713

878,955

1,153,509

5,023,348

259,439

6,436,296

315.251

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended June 30,

2021 2020

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES:
PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants

Town Warrants

Donations

Rental income

Fundraising, net of direct expenses of $13,065
and $4,615, respectively
Total public support

REVENUES

Investment return

Total public support and revenues

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Satisfaction of usage restrictions
Satisfaction of time restrictions
Total net assets released from restrictions
Total public support, revenues and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
General and administrative
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year

NET ASSETS, End of year

The accompanying notes are an

$  1,739,067 $  1,739,067 $  1,074,789

_ 110,070 110,070 -

1,387,469 - ' 1,387,469 1,296.266

110,106 -
110,106 117,965

481,621 _ 481,621 276,979

1,979,196 1,849,137 3,828,333 2,765,999

385,295 - 385,295 14,075

2,364,491 1,849,137 4,213,628 2,780,074

1,856,574

10,216

1,866,790

4,231,281

2,094,473

426,739

232,446

2,753,658

1.477,623

6.176,857

$  7.654.480

( 1,856,574)
{  10,216)
( 1,866,790)

(  17,653)

17,653)

259,439

4,213,628

2,094,473

426,739

232,446

2,753,658

1,459,970

6.436,296

2,780,074

1,688,432

343,549
152,740

$  241.786 $ 7.896.266

integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30,

2021 2020

Program General Fund-

Services and Admin Raising Total Total

Management salaries $  101,501 $ 158,552 $ 61,988 $ 322,041 $ 338,020
Salaries and wages 670,347 20,350 46,690 737,387 679,841
Employee benefits 92,723 21,492 13,056 127,271 140,069
Payroll taxes 73,097 16,943 10,292 100,332 77,138
Professional fees 3, 830 12,075 - 15,905 17,025
Bad debt 12,561 2 1, 094 13,657 14,749
Investment fees - 459 - 459 905

Office and administration 9,728 60,984 7,523 78,235 60,618
Heat 14,730 2,629 1, 597 18,956 18,505
Electricity 29,395 5,539 3, 365 38,299 40,034
Water and sewer 19,334 3, 087 1, 875 24,296 30,862
Repairs and maintenance 109,601 20,654 12,547 142,802 91,772
Interest 22,425 5,198 3, 157 30,780 32,021
Insurance 64,907 15,044 9,139 89,090 40,728
Food 17,438 - - 17,438 30,347
Direct services 297,233 - - 297,233 242,261
Telephone 19,849 3,246 1, 972 25,067 13,727
Covid expenses 396,065 44,665 17,454 458,184 131,026
Volunteer & board development - 3,461 21,138 24,599 7,319
Depreciation and amortization 135,607 31,594 19,094 186,295 171,382
Staff & program development 4,102 765 465 5,332 6,372

TOTALS $ 2.094.473 $ 426,739 $ 232,446 $  2,753.658 $ 2.184.721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from public support
Cash-received from investment return

Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Cash paid for interest

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net unrealized investment gain (loss)
Cash received from operating reserve
Cash paid for long-term reserve
Cash paid for property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for debt reduction

Net increase in cash

Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR

2021 2020

$  3,726,384 $ 3,027,767

32,203

(2,448,382)

(  30,780)

1,279,425

316,390

( 1, 038, 922;

(  491,206!

( 1,213,738]

32,904

(1,918,903)

(  32,021)

1,109,747

12,509)

126,560

316,352)

57,276)

259,577)

(  21,002) ( 22,023)

44,685

1,149,170

828,147

321,023

$  1.193.855 $ 1.149.170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended June 30,

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash from operating activities:

2021 2020

$  1,459,970 $ 595,353

Net unrealized investment (gain]

Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

loss

ilncrease) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses
Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable

Security deposits-Greenleaf Apartments
Deferred income

Accrued payroll items

Accrued expenses

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

316,390)

186,133

162

12,888

58,796

6,367

4, 020

36,702)

74,737

(  760)

(  180,000)

12,204

(  2,OOP)

(  180,545)

12,509

171,220

162

(  12,808)

986

98,975

59,652

6, 320

11,154:

152:

170,000

5, 034

13,650

514.394

$  1.279.425 $ 1.109.747

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982 but
was essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to
provide safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Cross Roads House received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the
Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualified as a non-profit
organization under Section 50.1(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore,
it IS not subject to income tax. Cross Roads House is not classified as a private
foundation.

Financial Statement Presentation
Cross Roads House reports information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The Organization accounts
for contributions as either with or without donor restrictions depending on the
existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions upon
satisfaction of the time or purpose of the restriction.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments
with a per share value constant at one dollar are considered to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents were $125,133 and $135,844 as of June 30 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the State in support of
homeless operations. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, management
considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance
for doubtful accounts is required.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Accounting
Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is
recopized as it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Subsecpaent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 27, 2021, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Promises to Give/Contributions
Cross Roads House accounts for contributions without donor restrictions and with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions upon satisfaction of the time or purpose restrictions.
An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding, unconditional
pledges at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2021, management considers all
pledges to be fully collectible.

All unconditional promises to give are current and consist of the following, as
of June 30,

2021 2020

Wentworth Gala event $ 24,600 $ 36,703
Client Receivable 1,295
Total unconditional promises to give $ 25.895 $ 36.703

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis.. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition
The Organization's investments as of June 30, 2021 are stated at fair value.
Shares of the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices,
which represent the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest
income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-
dividend date. As of June 30, 2021, investments have a market value of
$2,192,431, cost basis of $1,862,478 and unrealized cumulative gains of. $329,953.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been
purchased, and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been
donated. The cost of buildings and improvements is recovered using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of 2 to 7 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2021,
consisted of the following:

Land and improvements $ 217,266
Buildings and improvements 6,345,469
Fiimiture and equipment 458, 330
Total property and equipment 7,021,065
Less accumulated depreciation 2,058,412
Property and equipment, net $ 4.962.653

Donated Services

Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, there were no amounts for donated services.

Donated Marketable Securities

Donated marketable securities are valued at fair market value. Marketable
securities are. immediately, sold and are included in the statement of activities
as donations. Donated marketable securities of $77,329 and $31,146 were received
during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution
establishing this fund, property contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of Cross Roads
House. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions
from the fund to Cross Roads House. The distributions are approximately 4.00% of
the market value of the fund per year.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS (continued)

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years ended
June 30,

2021 2020

Beginning, fair value, 7/1 $ 126,131 $ 132,451
Total return 43,677 ( 232)
Foundation fee ( 459) ( 905)
Distributions ( 6,516) ( 5,183)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 $ 162.833 $ 126.131

Distributions represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown as
unrestricted dividends.

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Cross Roads House records its marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
change in net assets, in the statement of activities."

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value.

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at
the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities are traded.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.

The Organization reports under the Fair Value Measurements, which established a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

-12-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the
ability to access.

Investments, all at level 1, at fair value consisted of the following as of
June 30,

2021 2020

Cash & equivalents
Domestic equities
Domestic fixed income

TOTALS

$  125,133 $ 135,844
1,429,966 647,189

637,332 370,476
$ 2.192.431 $ 1.153.509

NOTE D - ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS

Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as of June 30

2021 2020

Payroll and payroll taxes
Earned time

Totals

$  9,163

75,442

$  84.605

$  11,294

61,107

$  72.401

NOTE E - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cross Roads House receives money under various state and federal grants.
Under the terms of these grants. Cross Roads House is required to use the
money within the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal.
If expenditures of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance
with the proposal. Cross Roads House may be required to repay the grantor's
funds.

NOTE F - LINE OF CREDIT

The organization has established a $300,000 line of credit with Provident
Bank with a current interest rate of 5.25%. The interest rate is directly
tied to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate with no margin. Accordingly, any
changes to this rate will change the organization's line of credit rate.
There was no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2021.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT

Current Long-term Total
Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $1,293, 4.69% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
August 2037. $ 7,502 $ 167,323 $ 174,825

Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
~payment"~i"s "$27070', 5 762'% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
March 2038. 10,049 258,431 268,480

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $953, 5.62% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
May 2038. 5,116 109,787 114,903

Total long-term debt $ 22.667 $ 535.541 $ 558.208

Future principal loan payments are as follows for the years ended,

June 30, 2022 $ 22,667
2023 23, 901
202 4 25,203
202 5 26,575
202 6 28,024
Thereafter. . . 431,838

NOTE H - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2021, Cross Roads House had a cash balance held by a bank that
was in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The uninsured amount was $876,775 however, any amount in excess
is fully covered by the Massachusetts Depositors Insurance Fund (DIF). The
DIF is a private, industry-sponsored insurance fund that insures all deposits
above FDIC limits for their member banks.

Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm
that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.

Cross Roads House derived 42% of its operating revenue from government
agencies.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE I - GREENLEAF APARTMENTS

Cross Roads House purchased a 12-unit single room occupancy building in
Portsmouth, NH in April 2018. Applicants must meet certain requirements as
defined in a Tenant Selection Plan to.qualify for these low-income units.
Rental income was $110,106 and rental expenses totaled $58,024 for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Rental expenses are included in the statement of
functional expenses as program expenses.

NOTE J - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

As part of Cross Roads House's liquidity management, it has a policy to
structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, the organization
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. To
help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the organization has a committed
line of credit in the amount of $300,000, which it could draw upon. The
organization also has a Board designated reserve of $2,192,431. Although the
organization does not intend to spend from its reserve other than amounts
appropriated for general expenditure as part of its annual budget approval
and appropriation process, amounts from its reserve could be made available
if"necessary.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE,. INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWTUIDS

Year ended June 30,

Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through
2021 2020

Grantor/ Program Title Federal Agency or Program Federal Federal

CFDA Pass-Through or Award Disburse Disburse

US Dept of Housing and Urban
Number Number(s) Amount ments ments

Development:

Grantor City of Dover
CDBG 14.218 N/A $ 15,000 $  15,000 $  12,050

Grantor City of Portsmouth
CDBG 14.218 N/A 17,000 17,000 42,000

Grantor City of Rochester
CDBG 14.218 N/A 10,000 10,000 12,000

Grantor City of Rochester - CV
CDBG 14 .218 N/A 15,271 15,271 -

Grantor State of NH

Emergency Solutions Grant 14 .231 E20DW330001 361,100 118,515 -

Grantor State of NH

Continuum of Care 14.267 NH0095 377,752 327,847 290,523
L1T001904

US Dept of the Treasury - Cares
Act:

Grantor State of NH

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 129,977 129,977 131,667
Grantor NH Housing Authority
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 589,658 589,658 -

TOTALS SI.515.758 S 1,223.268 S  488.240

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal
grant activity of Cross Roads House, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Uniform Guidance. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented or used in preparation of the financial
statements.

-16-



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of Cross Roads House, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2021 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) in order to determine
our audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cross
Roads House, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weal^ness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part.of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
September 27, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cross Roads House, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
reQuirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2021. Cross Roads House, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our ■ responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Cross Roads
House, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part .200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Cross Roads House, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance
for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. Cross Roads House, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Cross Roads House, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the tiqses of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2

the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
September 27, 2021

-20-
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended June 30, 2021

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material weakness(es) identified: yes X no

•  Reportable condition(s) identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none
reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes x no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weakness(es) identified: yes x no

•  Reportable condition(s) identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none
reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes x no
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

Year ended June 30, 2021

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

14.267

21.019

Name.of Federal Program or Cluster

Continuum of Care

Permanent Supportive Housing
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Shelter Modification Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs

$ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

NONE.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE.

yes X no
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Cross Roads House Board of Directors

Name Affiliation Town of Residence Committees

Adams, Michael Architect Greenland Building

Bear, Bob Retired Rye Beach Program

Bellmare, Chris Arista Networks Rye

Development, Program,

Governance

Bresette, Suzanne Stratoge Partners North Hampton

Executive, Program,

Development

Brown, Bob

Treasurer Self employed/consultant North Hampton Finance

Campbell, Eric Bottomline Technologies, Inc. York, ME Program

Clark, Lisa B2W Software Newburyport, MA Development

Cohen, Ken Psychiatrist Kensington Program

Dillon, Denis McLane Middleton Rye

Governance,

Development

Drew, Kathryn

Merrill Lynch Wealth Management/Bank

of America Corp. Rye Governance

Goddard, Steve Retired Kittery Point, ME Development

Gregoire, Jason Sheehan Phinney Exeter Governance

Martindale, Vivan Retired Hampton Program

Mathews, Shaun Retired New Castle Finance, Program

Moore, Vanda

Secretary Sprague Energy Greenland Executive, Development

Pace, Joe Full time Dad/Selectman/author Kensington Development

Scourby, Lex Chicken of the Sea Frozen Foods Portsmouth

Executive, Finance,

Governance,

Development
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Cross Roads House Board of Directors

Name Affiliation Town of Residence Committees

Silva, Chuck

Vice President Albany International, Corp. Portsmouth Executive, Governance

St. Jean, Ben

President Clipper Strategic Consulting, LLC Portsmouth

Executive, Finance,

Building

Tierney, Gillian Unlguest, Inc. Kittery, ME Governance

Worboys, Mary Lee Retired Durham Program
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m Wildolfo Arvelo

"For ten years, I had the honor of watching Dr. Arvelo transform Great Bay Community College from a small,
unengaged community college into one of the most respected and engaged colleges in the region. One of Will's
greatest strengths is his ability to bring out the best in others. He empowers his direct reports to lead. He inspires
the community, internal and external, to believe and invest in the organizational mission. Most impressive is his
ability to move seamlessly and garner respect from students, staff, faculty, business, and community leaders.
Simply stated. Will Arvelo is a transformative leader that enables people and organizations to achieve their best."

Michael Fischer, Ed. P., President. York County Community College

Career Profile

A dynamic, visionary, and collaborative leader with 35 years of diverse leadership experience in improving and
expanding learning, educational access and workforce and economic development opportunity. I am focused on
equity, organizational resiliency, and economic inclusion across New Hampshire communities. I am driven by my
passion for serving marginalized and underserved communities.

Key Areas of Expertise:

Leadership: Manage collaborative and effective relationships with deans, division directors, and faculty and
staff as well as business, non-profit and community leaders. Have led in facility design, construction and
management. Board development, grant writing and management, marketing and branding, fundraising,
budget development and oversight, and community outreach. Highly effective managerial skills with the
capability to adapt a leadership style to meet situational challenges while guiding teams to achieve desired
results. Deeply committed to establishing/nurturing environments of collaboration and mutual respect.

Financial Management: Demonstrated ability to manage fiscal resources effectively in complex organizations.
Managed a $20 million dollar budget and $28 million in grants by consistently tying the budget process with
the strategic plan and setting clear priorities. Proven success identifying diverse funding sources and securing
new funding/revenue streams. Raised hundreds of thousands of dollars annually through private donations to
support student scholarships, classroom resources and faculty and staff development.

Strategic Planning: Worked with faculty and staff to develop a plan to increase enrollment and graduation.
Successfully served on internal and external multi-functional teams that were responsible for opening new

programs and services as well as establishing new mission, vision and values for the College (Great Bay).
Worked with other Community College System Presidents and the Chancellor on System-wide initiatives tied
to enrollment, marketing, retention, research, and collaboration with the University System and the State.
Worked with the University System and high schools to transition from high school to community college to 4-

year colleges seamlessly with such programs as Running Start, Early College, eStart, and Dual Admissions.

Student Engagement: Led efforts to include students in the College's (Great Bay) shared governance
processes through training of student leaders to serve in student government, the College's Advisory Board
and other college-wide committees. Met with students on a regular basis to gauge their experiences/progress.

Wildolfo Arvelo Page 2

Professional Experience
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Executive Director, Cross Roads House, Inc., Portsmouth, NH (2021 - Present)

■ Lead the second largest homeless shelter In New Hampshire, which houses up to 130 individuals and 12

families nightly. This includes sheltering, feeding, triaging immediate health, mental health and addiction issues

as well as working with the unhoused longer-term to get them permanently housed. Manage three facilities

which include a main homeless shelter and offices, a family shelter, and a 12-unit permanent housing complex.

Manage a $2.5 million annual budget and fundraising and grants process.
■ Manage a permanent housing facility that houses former Cross Roads House residents.

■ Lead outreach efforts with the CRH Board, the Seacoast community, media, donors and volunteers, and

partner and state agencies. Work on advocacy efforts with legislators and Governor's Office and testify before

the Legislature.

Director, New Hampshire Division of Economic Development (BEA), Concord, NH (2018 - Present)

■ Lead the Division of Economic Development in support of business attraction, expansion and retention.

Collaborate with the Office of Workforce Opportunity and the Department of Employment Security on workforce

retention and training. Work in partnership with the community college and university systems on workforce

training and other strategic issues. Work closely with business chambers, municipalities, and economic

development and industry groups to increase economic opportunities for NH citizens. Visit with businesses

across New Hampshire to understand their needs and priorities. Help to manage the State's Covid response to

businesses. Worked with SBA and FEMA on immediate and long-term strategy for business resiliency post-Covid.

■ Collaborate with the Commissioner on a 10-year economic development plan as well as post-pandemic

recovery plan for NH. Serve on a variety of state-wide community, workforce and education boards, including

SB190 (CTE), DOE K-12 Minimum Standards Task Force, State Workforce Innovation Board (SWIB), Council for

Thriving Children, Benefits Cliff Working Group, NH Learning Initiative (NHLI), National Collaborative on

Competency Based Learning (NCCBL), and Chair of the Commission on Mental Health Workforce Development.

Selected Highlights:

m Work with Governor's Office, Federal delegation, SBA, FEMA on Covid response;

■ Lead efforts on diversity, equity and inclusion. Founded Business Alliance for People of Color (BAPOC-NH);

a Represent BEA at conferences, radio and television events; hosted "Business Matters" on 107.7FM.

President, Great Bay Community College, Portsmouth/Rochester, NH (2007 - 2017)

a Worked with a staff and faculty of over 200 and an operational budget of $20 million. Led inclusive visioning,
strategic and shared governance planning retreats. Guided the development and nurturing of the senior

leadership team. Served as Community College System liaison for partnerships with the University System.

Worked with Chancellor, Presidents and System Board on System-wide improvements. Led marketing efforts in

radio, TV, print and social media. Managed $28 million dollars in grants to develop System-wide manufacturing
training capacity and a composites training center in Rochester. Recruited and on-boarded members of the

College's Advisory Board. Developed the first partnerships with adult learning programs in Dover and Exeter.

Selected Highlights:

a Oversaw $30 million of capital improvements and the building of the main college campus and a satellite
academic center; spearheaded and led fundraising efforts that raised over $2 million dollars in 6 years;
a Spearheaded re-branding efforts to develop a new name, logo, websites and collateral;

■ Developed certificate/degree programs including NDT, CNC, Aviation, Automotive, Composites, Engineering

Transfer, Medical Assisting, Massage Therapy, Insurance, Motorcycle Technician, Helicopter Pilot, and Welding;

a Led two successful 10-year NEASC accreditation studies and visits;

■ Worked with faculty to engage students in NSF EPSCoR and NIH undergraduate research;

■ Served as principle investigator for $20MM state-wide federal grant to promote STEM/advance manufacturing.
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"Dr. Wildolfo Arvelo has served as a significant mentor, making a profound impact in my life. As a transformative
leader he created a culture of excellence throughout the college as a whole. Dr. Arvelo took the time to personally
engage with students and engaged the full community and through that engagement created countless
partnerships and opportunities for students before and after graduation. He taught me many things, but most
mportantly, he taught me the importance of leadership and community. I wouldn't be the person I am today had I
not been a part of the community he created. I owe so much of my professional and personal success to Dr.

Arvelo, as do so many others. Dr. Arvelo exemplifiers what it means to be a leader."

Ashley Rennie, Former Student

Wildolfo Arvelo Page 3

VP: Corporate and External Relations, Benjamin Franklin Institute of Technology, Boston, MA (2004 - 2007)
■ Worked with the President on strategic initiatives. Collaborated with faculty and staff across the College.

Nurtured collaborative relationships with Boston Public Schools and local business and industry. Oversaw the
writing of the NEASC ten-year accreditation study and visit. Wrote and managed several Federal DDL grants.
Dean of Enrollment Services (2000 - 2003) / Director of Admissions (1998 - 2000), Benjamin Franklin Institute

of Technology, Boston, MA

■ Oversaw marketing and enrollment strategies and spearheaded re-branding of the college with new name,
logo, website and collateral. Restructured Financial Aid saving the college $240,000 annually.

Educational Development Coordinator (1997 -1998) / Associate Director of Admissions (1996 -1997), Roxbury
Community College, Boston, MA

Community Engagement

Board Memberships Include:

Founder and Chair: Business Alliance for People of Color (2020-Present) / DOE K-12 Minimum Standards Task

Force (2021) / Council for Thriving Children (2020 - 2021) / Benefits Cliff Working Group (2019 - 2021) / Chair:
Governor's Commission on Mental Health Workforce Development (2019 - 2021) / New Hampshire Learning

Initiative (2019 - Present) / Founder and Chair: Economic Vitality New Hampshire (2018 - Present) / NHSPCA
(2018 - Present) / Small Business Development Center (2018 - 2021) / State Workforce Innovation Board (2018
- 2021) / Member: Seacoast NAACP (2018 - Present) / National Collaborative for Competency Based Learning
(2018 - Present) / Foundation for Healthy Communities (2017 - 2018) / Foundation for Seacoast Health (201S -
2017) / New Hampshire College and University Council (2007 - 2017) / NSF EPSCoR Statewide Committee (2014
- 2016) / New Hampshire Postsecondary Education Commission (2012 - 2014) / Foundation, Community College
System of New Hampshire (2007 - 2017) / United Way of the Greater Seacoast (2011 - 2015) / UNH College of
Life Sciences & Agriculture (2007 - 2009)

Awards and Recognition

Distinguished Leader Award: Great Bay Community College (2019) / Honorary Doctorate: Granite State College
(2018) / Dedicated Service Award: Great Bay Community College (2017) / Leadership Award: United Way of the
Greater Seacoast (2015) / Citizen of the Year Award: Portsmouth Chamber of Commerce (2012) / Leadership
Award: Benjamin Franklin Institute of Technology (2007) / New Leader Profile: Business NH Magazine (January
2022)
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Education & Certifications

University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA

Ed.D. in Higher Education Administration (2012)
M.S. in Public Affairs (1992) / B.A. in History (1989)

"As a former CEO of a division of a Fortune 500 Company, I had the opportunity to work closely with Dr. Will

Arvelo on a number of collaborations related to business and industry. Will has excellent interpersonal skills and is

highly focused on the mission at hand. He has the innate ability to forge meaningful and lasting relationships with
business and industry leaders. Will is a good listener, a quick study and has the ability to bring people together to
execute strategic plans. He is an excellent orator who is able to persuade others to consider various options to
business and industry issues. In the words of Washington Irving: "Great minds have purpose, others have wishes".
I can assure you that Will has purpose!"

David Hampson, CEO. Willis Towers Watson
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Jillian D. Carroll

EDUCATION

Br)'ant University, Smithfield, RI May 2009
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration

• Concentration: Management Minor; Psychology; Cultural Studies
• Dean's List

• Lean Six Sigma Yellow Belt certification

EMPLOYMENT

Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH August 2020 - Present
Finance Director

•  Sole accounting, financial and human resource position within the Organization
•  Handle month and year end preparation on behalf of the Finance Committee Board Members
•  Monthly reporting and invoicing for State and Federally funded Human Service programs
•  Financial management of 12 tenant rental
•  Payroll, new hire onboarding, employee benefits

Northeast Distribution LTD, October 2016 - August 2020
Controller

•  Sole accounting and financial position within the Company utilizing Sage ICQ
•  Handle month and year end close including bank balancing
•  All accounts receivable and accounts payable functions including but not limited to cash applications, credit worthiness,

aging and reporting
-• Prepares all borrowing base requirements
•  Formulates annual expense budget

•  Payroll and 401k contribution

Margaritas Management Group, Inc., Portsmouth, NH October 2013 - October 2016
Senior Accountant

•  Balance daily and monthly bank activity for all restaurants
•  Record additions, disposals and depreciate fixed assets

•  Apply and maintain all restaurant licenses including liquor, entertainment and food permits
•  Handle month end closing process for multiple restaurants utilizing Sage 100

Liberty Mutual, Dover, NH November 2009 - October 2013
Premium Auditor-Inside - Aoril 2013 -October 2013

• Compile and complete incoming internal audits in timely manner
• Reconcile customer supplied documentation to federally filed payroll records
• Maintain relationship with customers in regard to past worker compensation and general liability coverage
• Assist customers with completion of forms distributed by Liberty Mutual

Financial Operations Representative 11 - February 201 l-Aoril 2013

• Complete weekly billing and distribution of invoices for various Loss Prevention units
• Reconcile daily activity from Canadian accounts to receivable system (Quicksilber)
• Balance daily activity of Billing and Receivable Tracking (BART)
• Daily reconciliation of bank activity for internal maintenance
• Support financial and technical functions to CMFO unit

Financial Operations Representative - November 2009-Februarv 2011

•  Identify incoming customer payments and report collections via BART
• Refund Small Deductible Workers Compensation claims
• Research and process all return to sender mailed checks

Living Innovations, Portsmouth, NH July 2009- November 2009
Administrative Assistant

• Compile and compute weekly data pertaining to numerous clients attendance reports for regional billing computation
• Manage employee reimbursements while ensuring accurate submission of information
•  Support staff through training and file maintenance in order to work successfully with clients
• Maintain accurate and up-to-date client records

COMPUTER SKILLS

• Microsoft: Access, Excel, Internet Explorer, Outlook, PowerPoint, Word; QuickBooks; Adobe; Sage 100; Photoshop
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SANDRA L. BEAUDRY

Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, NH #22

EDUCATION

Master of Science, December 1992 Bachelor of Science, September 1987
Marriage and Family Therapy Human Services
University of New Hampshire University of Southern New Hampshire

CLINICAL AND SOCIAL SERVICE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

CROSS ROADS HOUSE

Portsmouth, NH January 2014 to present
Program Director

•  Supervise Shelter and Community-Based Clinicat Case Management program
•  Responsible for enhancement of programming to support residents physical and emotional well-being, self-

sufficiency, and move to permanent housing
•  Establish inter-agericy partnerships
•  Seek diverse funding, including government and private grants and the provision of reimbursable services
•  Identify and meet direct and clinical service staff training needs
•  Oversee CRH entry into the Homeless Management Information System, data collection and outcome tracking
•  Direct Permanent Supportive Housing and Rapid Re-Housing programs

CHILD AND FAMIL Y SERVICES

Manchester, Concord, Portsmouth, NH February 1997 to January 2014
Program Director October 2008 to January 2014
Program Leadership and Supervision
•  Directed statewide counseling and adolescent/young adult substance abuse treatment programs and a federally-

funded mentoring/family support program for youth being released from the Sununu Youth Services Center (joint
project with Goodwill of NNE)

•  Supervised 14 direct report clinical staff and two interns
•  Supported implementation of Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and trauma-informed care
•  Provided supervision and clinical support to the Seacoast Street Outreach Program mental health clinician and

oversaw the mental health subcontract with the Healthcare for the Homeless program at Families First
•  Developed and maintained procedure manuals for counseling and substance abuse treatment programs
•  Oversaw quality assurance of clinical records and implementation of evidence-based practices
•  Developed, monitored and maintained program budgets that have ranged from a total of $1 million to $1.4 million

annually
•  Supervised and coordinated the statewide CFS Deployment Cycle Support Program, which provided home-based

counseling and support to military service members and their families before, during, and after deployment,
through a subcontract with Easter Seals

•  Directed the Family Intervention Program, state-contracted barrier-resolution services for TANF recipients in the
New Hampshire Employment Program across the state, including four sub-contracts with Family Resource
Centers

•  Provided administrative and clinical support to Healthy Marriage Responsible Fatherhood federal grant project
serving fathers in the state prison system and their families

Grants and Contracts

•  Managed or co-managed four multi-year federal grants from SAMHSA, OJJDP, and ACF, including data
collection and reporting, continuation applications, annual progress reports, and no-cost extension requests

•  Managed state contracts with BDAS, DOC, and DFA, including proposal writing and submission, data collection
and reporting, and budget development

• Wrote or contributed to grant proposals to foundations, including grants received from Peoples United Bank for
Seacoast office-based family counseling and Healthcare Gives for mobile mental health services in the Street
Outreach Program

•  Developed proposals and received funding from United Way agencies across the state
• Wrote proposals to municipalities, including the city of Portsmouth, and presented to town selectman and town

budget meetings
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•  Facilitated agency contracts with managed care companies for counseling and substance abuse treatment
services and the credentialing of CPS clinical staff

•  Provided the CPS agency administrator function for WITS, the web-based treatment, data, pay-for-perfonmance,
and billing center for Access to Recovery and BDAS treatment contracts

Board and Community Involvement
•  Served as the staff liaison to the CPS Seacoast Regional Advisory Board, facilitating monthly meetings and their

work in fundraising, including the RiverWoods Gala and the Lonza golf tournament
•  Facilitated a multi-disciplinary advisory board for the CPS Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program with

representatives from prevention, treatment, school and juvenile justice service providers
•  Represented CPS on the following boards: New Hampshire Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers

Association, Health First (Laconia and Franklin), and Community Resource Network (Seacoast)
•  Serve as Board Secretary and Conference Registrar for the New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health

Program Manager June 2007 to October 2008
Managed Family Intervention Program

Marriage and Family Therapist February 1997 to June 2007
Provided assessment and psychotherapy services to individuals, couples and families in a variety of Seacoast area
settings, including community-based therapy to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity
in conjunction with the Healthcare for the Homeless program, consultation to Community Child Care Center, and critical
incident response with the state Disaster Behavioral Health (Response Team. Served on the board of SeaCare Health
Services for nine years as the mental health representative.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS

Rochester, NH
Home-Based Clinician May 1992 to February 1997
Provided home-based family therapy, case management, and provider consultation services to multi-problem families in
Strafford County. Helped develop and taught Child Impact seminar for divorcing parents.

RESIDENTIAL AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Service Coordinator October 1988 to August 1991
Provided service coordination and individual support to developmentally disabled adults and their families.
Merrimack Valley Case Management Team, Mass. Dept. of Mental Retardation, Haverhill, MA
Case Manager April 1987 to September 1988
Obtained and coordinated community services for developmentally disabled adults.
One Sky, Portsmouth, NH
Coordinator of Community Residences December 1984 to April 1987
Supervised the operation of four licensed community residences for developmentally disabled adults
Group Home Coordinator February 1983 to December 1984
Established and managed group home for four deinstitutionalized men.
Sullivan County Developmental Services, Claremont, NH
Assistant Residential Program Supervisor March 1982 to January 1983
ACCESS, Conshohocken, PA
Resident Manager November 1980 to March 1982
River Crest Center, Mont Clare, PA

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP AND EDUCATION

Clinical Fellow and Approved Supervisor, American Association of Marriage and Family Therapy

Adjunct Professor January 2013 to May 2015
Spring Semester Marriage and Family Therapy Graduate Practicum, University of New Hampshire

Teaching Assistant September 1991 to May 1992
Introduction to Human Development course, University of New Hampshire

Presenter, various professional continuing education workshops, including Assessing Families, Working with Difficult
Families, Child Care Consultation, and The NH DOC Fatherhood Project
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JULIA THOMPSON

EXPERIENCE

HOUSING STABILITY CASE MANAGER, CROSS ROADS HOUSE

DEMEBER 2021 - PRESENT

Assist participants in obtaining housing, including explaining program to and negotiating leases with
landlords, apartment inspections, completing the participation agreements with participants,
helping participants with apartment set-up and orientation to apartment living.

Support positive landlord-tenant relationships, as needed, and work to prevent lease violations and

evictions

Establish participant-directed Stability Plan goals, identifying appropriate steps towards achieving
goals, modifying goals as needed, and tracking progress.

Facilitate a wide variety of community resource referrals, coordinate with service providers, and
advocate on behalf of participants as appropriate.

Utilize de-escalation, motivational Interviewing, harm reduction, and other clinical skills to maintain

participant engagement and address or prevent crisis situations.

Maintain precise and accurate documentation of social work services, including paper and
electronic records.

Adhere to professional guidelines, including maintaining appropriate boundaries with clients and

ensuring appropriate confidentiality.

Collaborate with other staff members so that individual participant needs are effectively addressed.

DIRECT SERVICE STAFF, CROSS ROADS HOUSE

SEPTEMBER 2021 - DECEMBER 2021

•  Answer phones in a friendly manner and direct calls appropriately.

•  Complete intakes of new residents and help orient them to the shelter Monitor residents for

changes in behavior and log accordingly.

•  Keep an accurate log of important details of the shift.

•  Communicate effectively with residents and other staff members.

•  Set appropriate boundaries with residents.

• Work as a team with other direct service staff members and other employees.

NANNY, PRIVATE RESIDENCE

JANUARY 2021 - AUGUST 2021

•  Built positive and nurturing environments to support child social and emotional growth.

•  Communicated with children at age-appropriate levels to encourage understanding and foster

relationships.

•  Established lasting, professional connections with families and children by encouraging open
communication and delivering positive feedback.

•  Assisted with light housekeeping duties as well as running errands.

•  Taught children everyday skills and language.

•  Engaged with children on age-appropriate level.
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CERTIFIED NURSES ASSISTANT, SPECTRUM STAFFING SOLUTIONS, MAS MEDICAL
STAFFING, MERCY HOSPITAL, GREENWOOD CENTER

2017 -2020

Assisted patients with mobility needs, including moving to and from beds, organizing wheelchairs
and preparing assistive devices.

Answered call lights and supported patient comfort and safety by adjusting bed rails and
equipment.

Evaluated patients to identify and address wounds, behavioral concerns, and medically relevant
symptoms.

Offered immediate assistance in emergency and routine paging situations to evaluate needs and
deliver care.

Delivered individualized patient care by recording vital signs, documenting observations,
administering treatments and evaluating patient needs.
Conferred with multidisciplinary healthcare team to help effectively manage patient conditions with
regular testing and vitals assessments.

EDUCATION

MAY 2023

BACHELOR'S IN SOCIAL WORK, UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE

SKILLS

•  Upbeat and positive personality

•  Punctual

•  Strong de-escalation techniques

Excellent communication

Dependable

Issue and conflict resolution
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Cross Roads House

CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

tCev Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Will An'elo Executive Director 127,500 0 0

Jill Carroll Finance Director 95,000 0 0

Sandra Beaudry Program Director 75,000 $8,930

Julia Thompson Housing Stability Case
Manager

39,520 100% $39,520
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMICS HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271.9474 1.S00.8S2.334S Eit. 9474

Fai: 603-271-4230 TDD Acccm: 1-000.735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

June 22. 2021

Hts Excellency, (Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services,. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with the vendor listed in bold below for the
ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Senrices to Individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising
a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $400,876 from $1,331,252 to
$1,732,128 and by extending the completion date from July 31, 2021 to July 31, 2022 effective
August 1, 2021 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on July 31. 2019, item
#23, and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on August 26, 2020, item
#12.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future, operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items vinthin the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Cross Roads House,

Inc., Portsmouth, NH
177203

-B0C3

. Eastern

Rocktngham,
Stratford &

Merrimack

Counties

$760,772 $400,876 $1,161,648

TheMentalHealth

Center for Southern

New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life

Management, Derry, NH

174116

-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$570,480 $0 $570,480

Total: $1,331,252 $400,876 $1,732,128

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Deparim'int of HealUi and Human Seruicet' i$ to join eommunilUs and fomiliea
■in providing opportunilies (or eUisen$ to ochJtiM health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl
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EXPLANATION

Federal regulations require the Department to identify each vendor, by name, during the
annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application.process, prior to the grant awards
being issued. A competitive process occurs at the Federal level and the Department delivers the
funding to the Contractors through these agreements. Speciftcally, the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) reviews the applications and subsequently awards
funding based on pre-established criteria.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Permanent Housing program that
delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness.

This program serves individuals and families experiencing homelessness. and
approximately tvyenty eight (23) individuals will be served from August 1, 2021 to July 31, 2022.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans and facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent housing. Addrtionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will rnbnitor contracted services using the following tools:

« Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and expense rep>ort3. to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services with Cross Roads House, Inc. for the one (1) remaining year available,
tn 2020, the Department participated in a grant and contract consolidation program, directed by
HUD, in which the above-listed Shelter Plus Care I contract, with The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire dba CLM Center for Life Management, was allowed to expire.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net. Additionally, If data is not collected as required
by the contract, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive
service programs.-

Area sen/ed: Eastern Rocklngham, Strafford & Merrimack Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #NH0095L1T001904, NH0095L1T002005
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His Excellency, Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hor>orable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

OoewStgn Envilop* 10: C««»CM»->e37U[»6^WinF»3lCOeO •

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH MO HUMAN SERVICES

CONTINUUM OF CARE. CROSS ROADS HOUSE AND CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT PERMANENT HOUSING CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SPY 2020 - 2023 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05.9M2-423010.7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES.
HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

\

100H Federal Funds

CoC Funds • NH009SL1T001904 SFYs 2020. 2021 & 2022
CoC Funds • NHP09SL1T00200S SFYs 2022 & 2023
Vendor 01772O3-BOO3

State Rscai

Year
Ctass / Account Class Title Job Number

Curreni Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Services 42309609 351.102 361.102

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Proorani Services TBO 378.191 378.191

2022 102/500731 • Contracts for Proqram Sendees TBD 31.479 367.470 396.949

2023 102/500731 - Contracts for Prooram Services TBO • 33,406 33.406

Sub Total 760.772 400.876 1.161.648

100% Fsdoral Funds

CoC Funds. NHO0UL1T001912

Vendor 01772OO.BOO4

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tills Job Number

Current Modilied

Budget

Increased

(Oeaeased)
Amount

Revised

Modified Budget

2020 ' 102/500731 Ccnlracls for Prooram Services 42301102 261.470 261.470

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Services TBD 285.240 265,240

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services TBO 23.770 •
23.770

2023 102/500731 Contracts (or Prooram Services TBO -• •

.  Sub Total 570.480 •
570.480

Grand Total 1.331.2521 400.8761 1.732.1201

SS.2020-6HS4)44>ERUA<I7.A02: and
S$'2020.6HS4)44>ERMA4)5*A01. aloMd to expire

Financial Detail

page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human, Services
("State" or "Department") and Cross Roads House, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31,2019, (Item #23), as amended on August 26, 2020, (Item #12), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to-
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or rnodify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

{

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31, 2022

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,161,648

3. .Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph T.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers; NH0095L1T001803 (August 1, 2019 through July 31. 2020).

NH0095L1T001904 (August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021).

■ NH0095L1T002005 (August 1, 2021 through July 31', 2022).

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1 August 1, 2019 -July 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-37.
General Provisions, Block 1.8.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description August 1,
2019 through
July 31. 2020

August 1,
2020 through
July 31,2021

August 1,
2021 through
July 31, 2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.2 Rental Assistance: $305,736' $300,468 $323,592 .  $929,796

1.2.8.1 Supportive Services: $68,354 $68,354 $68,354 $205,062

1.2.8.3 Administration: $8,930 $8,930 $8,930 $26,790

1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $383,020 $377,752 $400,876 $1,161,648

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%): $97,988 $96,670 $102,451 $297,109

6. Add Exhibit 8-2, Amendment #2, Budget Worksheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein. /—»»

Us
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A02 Cross Roads House, Inc. Contractor Initials ^

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date
6/22/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective August 1. 2021. upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/23/2021

Date

0«CuS>gn«4 by:

po>o<<rrcocoioi-

Name: Christine Santaniello

Title: Associate conunissioner

Cross Roads House, Inc.

6/22/2021

Date

•0«cuSlgn«4 bir

^ —AaC0*Ma<IM«8«.i

Name: Martha stone

Title: Executive Director

SS.2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A02

A-s-ro

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/24/2021

—OocuSl^d fty;

^■.-OtC*W93SiJC4*6ii

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-D4-PERMA-07-A02 Cross Roads House, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID; 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

g*M»ei ew*w » acew»-i«o-«oee-«*»e1nwicoco

£thlbll B-2. AmcndntM *2. Budici WorUh«tl

Crou RoadtHouM

|CoC fund* • NH009$ tlTD0200$

5nr2022 - 8/1/21-6/30/22 -

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARC BHSSHARE
Acttvrty Nam# BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY
AtntM AuiManea

SwppcrtAa SarMcw
AdmlnbvadeA

2a» RapuiTM Matcft
TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALAnTT

SFY2023 . 7/1/22-7/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR &HAR^ BHS SHARE
Acttvltv Nama BUDGET

RaniN AattoUrtC*

SuppertHa Sar.'caa
Aomaibraden

YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY MONTHLY

25% RaqvYad MKCft
TOTAL HUO FUNOS/OALANCE

ActlvBy Wama
RaniM Auhtanca

SuppO'«\« SarACH

TOTAL PROGRAM COST'

TOTAL . 8/1/21-7/31/22

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

nbiratlan a.aia

25% Raqukad Macn
TPVaL HUO 70N&&^aALANCr

tW.«5l

Total w/O Match 1 4dO.|T«

CroM Raadi Hovta. Inc.

SS-M2O-BKS-O4-KAMA47A0]

CitH/CCCH Pcnnanani Supponlvc Heuiln(EipaniioA

Contractor Inlibb

Paf* 1 al 1 C/TT/2021
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I ̂  ̂
/>

Lerl A. SUblactic
Ceomlulvnrr

Cbri<dac L. SiBtaakPft

Oirt<tor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEP>UITMENT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A. HOUSING STABILITY

129 r^lXASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 t.tOO-8S2-334S Ext. 9474

Fat; 603-271-4130 TDD Actcu: I-SOO-73S-2964 www.dhhs.ab.fov

July 21. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Oivlsion of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Retroactive, Solo Source contracts with the vendors listed
below for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and
families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,
by exercising contract renewal options and by Increasing the total price limitation by $662,992
from $668,260 to $1,331,252 and by extending the completion dates from July 31, 2020 to July
31. 2021 effective retroactive to August 1, 2020 upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

023.

The original contracts wiere approved by Governor and Coundl on July 31, 2019, item

Vendor Name Vendor

Code
Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised
Amount

Cross Roads House.

Inc., Portsmouth. NH
177203-

8003

Eastern

Rockir>gham.
Strafford 6

Merrimack

Counties

$363,020 $377,752 $760,772

The Mental Health

Center for Southern

New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life

f^anagement, Oerry. NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rocking ham
County

$285,240 $285,240 $570,480

.
Total; $668,260 $662,992 $1,331,252

Funds are available in the follovring account for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
antidpated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of hjnds in the future operating budget, with (he authority to adjust budget line Hems
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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His Excollency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
ar>d the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3 )

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because funds anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year
2021 wore not yet appropriated In the operating budget. The Department continues to work
closely with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to maintain open
communication and efforts supporting the more timely delivery of grant agreements from HtJD.
This request Is Solo Source because federal regulations require the Department to specify each
vendor's name durlr>g the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant award being issued. Based on the application evaluation process. HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of these requests are to continue providing Permanent Housing programs
that deliver rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals
and families who are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve Individuals and families experiencing homelessness as well as adults
vwho are experiencing homelessness while living with mental illness. Approximately frfly-throe (53)
individuals will l>o served from August 1, 2020 to July 31. 2021.

Using Ihe Housing First model and the development of Slabiiiza^pn and Crisis
Management plans, vendors facililate each participant's movement into sustained permanent
housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to maximize each
participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the fbllowingslools:
•  Annual reviev« relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.
•  Setrii-annual statistical reports, including various demographic Information end

Income and expense reports, to include match dollars.
•  All vendors funded through these contracts vrill report through the timely and

accurate entry ofdata Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes arid activities of shelter
and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the.option to extend the agreernenls for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundir^.
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of Ihe two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer perrrianent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and deadly situations. wiUiout a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected as required
by the contracts, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could
result In a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive
service programs.
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and the Honorable Council
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Area served: Rod^ingham. Strafford and Merrimack Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA »14.267. FAIN #s: NH0095L1T001904. NH0014L1T001912

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Tht Dtparlnttnl of HcoUh oiid llujuon Scwieet'ATiutOA i« u/eit co/nmu/M«t« ond fomilin
in providing eppoftunilUt for eilittm la oehievt heotO* Ond indtptndtnot. . t
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I
j  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
I  CONTINUUM OF CARE. CROSS ROADS HOUSE AND CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT PERMANENT HOUSING CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
:  SFY mo-2022 FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS-OS-42-423010-7027 HEALTH AND SOCUL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SvC6. HH$: HUMAN SERVICES.

HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING-SKELTER PROGRAM

100% Centrti Fund!

CoC Fund* - NK000SL1TOO1OO4

Vandorli7720)-e003
Cre't* R»*d* Heutt.lnc.. Porttmeuih. nh

Suit FItcsi
Yow

Clau/Account Oais TiUe JebNumbar
Currani Medlflad

Budgtl

Increased

(Oecreasad)
Amouni

Rtvised

ModlflodBudgat

2020 102/600731 CoftU-Kls lor Prooram Soivieas 42300609 361,102 . 351.102

2021 102/600731 Conuacu tor Pioonm S«rv4cot TBD 31.916 340.273 376.191

2022 102/600731 Contracis lor P'ooram Sorvlcos T80 31.470 31.478

Sub Told 303.020 3n.752 700.772

100% G*n«r»l Fund*

CoC Fund* • NH0014L1T001012

V«nderf177200-B004

Slate Fiscal
Yaar

Class / Account CaassTUe JobNtsnber
Cvrreru ModltWd

Budget ■

incraesed

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modtled Budget

2020 • 102^00731 Contracii lor Prooram SaMcas ■42301102 261.470 281.470
.  2031 102«00731 Cerwacts for Prooram Services TBO 23.770 261.470 266.240

2022 102^00731 Contracts for Prooram Services T0O . 23.770 23.770
Sub Toul 20S.240 2SS.240 670.480

Cf«nd Tciill 608.2001 002.0021 i.Mi.as:]

SS-2020-eH$4>4-P£RMA47.AOl:
SS-?020«HS4>4-PERM<k-0»-AO I
FlntncWOd*!
Pao« I of I



DocuSign Envelope ID; 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: C5DE9049-1627-4O6E.A269-0177F631CDEO

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment 01
to the Continuum of Care. CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Contract

This 1*' Amendment to the Continuum of Care. CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion
contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1*) is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to es the "Slate" or "Department") and
Cross Roads House, inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place
of business at 600 Lafayette Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801.

WHEREAS,, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by.the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019, (Item 023). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
ccndftions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums'specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal., the Contract may t>e amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limrtatlon, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and .

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows; ^

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Dale, to read;

July 31.2021. ^ ■
2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$760,772.

■  3. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Coridillons Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read;

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:' NH0095L1T001B03 (August 1. 2019 through July 31.'2020):
NH0095Llt001904 (August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read;

1.2.7.1 August t. 2020-July 31, 2021. not to exceed $377,752

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8. to read;

1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreen^nt for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Dcacrijstlort
August 1, August 1. Total

2019 through 2020 through Cumulative

July 31. 2020 July 31. 2021 Amount

1.2.8.1 Supportive Services: $68,354 $68,354 $136,708

1.2.B.2 Rental Assistance; $305,736 $300,468 $606;204

1.2.8.3 Administrative Expenses; $8,930 $8,930 $17,860

1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $383,020 $377,752 $760,772

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%); $97,968 $96,670 $194,658

6. Add Exhibit 6-1. Amendment # 1 Budget Worksheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Cross Roads House. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A01

Ameodmertlffi

P39e 1 ol 3

Contractor Initials

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcoa
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Houalng Expansion

M terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force end
effect. This amendment shall be relroactlvefy effective to August 1. 2020. upon the date of Governor end
Executive Council epprovel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hends as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health end Human Services

Date' I Name: jl . • •
ChrislindSantsoisllo

Title:
Director,

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Daid Name:

Title <5tone.

Cross Roads House, Inc. Amflndment 01

8$-2020-8HS-04-P£RMA-07-A01 Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion ,

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTice, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE AHORNEY GENERAL

08/06/20
Date ' Name:

Title: Catherine Pinos. Attorney •

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendtnenl was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:

Title:

Cross Roods Houso. Inc. Amendment
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Jeffrey A. Meyen
Cemmbiiencr

OirijUoc L SaBlinirlie
DIrccier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DtmWN OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STA BIUTY

1J9 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603.2719474 t 4004S2-3345 EiC 9474

Foi:603'27M2JI) TDDA«(M: 1400-73S.2964 www.dhhj.nh.|ov

June 27. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepartmeril of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
and Supportive" Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program in an amount not to exceed $668,260. effective August 1.2019, or upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later, through July 31. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Project
Name

Vendor 0 Location
SFY 2020

Amount

SFY 2021

Amount

Total

Amount

Cross Roads

House, Inc.

Pennaner\t

Supportive
Housing,
Expansion
Program

177203-6003

Eastern

Rockingham,
Stratford &
Merrimack

Counties

$351,102 $31,918 $383,020

The Mental
Health Center for
Southern New.

Hampshire dba
CLM Ccnler for

Life Management

Shelter

Plus Care (,
Permaner)!

Housing
Program

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
• County

$261,470 $23,770 $285,240

Total 612,572 55,688 $668,260

Funds are available in the following account for Stale Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020. and are anticipated
to be available in SFY 2021, upon.the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within.the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95^2^23010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM .

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number -Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ■ TBD $612,572

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices ISO • $55,688

Total $668,260
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His Excellency! Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because,federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum 6f Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and tJrban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards fundir>g based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with slate or f^eral fiscal years. The start date'of a grant is based
on the month In which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This resuhs in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The attached agreements represent two (02) of thirty (30) total agreements, many .of which have
renewal dales dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughout the state
to ensure ongoing, stal^ide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care
Program.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supporlive services and associated administrative
•services targeted to serve a minimum of fifty-three (53) participants from August 1. 2019 through July 31.
2020.

Using the -'Housing First* model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream' services to maximize participant's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the.Continuum of Care concept to support communities .in their efforts to
address the problems of. housing and homelessness in a coordinated, cbmprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes:

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

'• A process to ertgage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

Trie following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance: .

• Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic ̂ formation and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in
the New Hampshire Homeless Management Infonmalion System, unless they are required by
taw to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information
System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.
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His ExceHency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of each of these contracts; the Department reserves the right to
extend each agreement for up to two (02) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing,
and Supportive Services for New Hampshire homeless Individuals and families may not be available in
their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local
welfare authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families to become homeless.

Source of funds: 100% .Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of'Housing and Urban
Oevelopment. OfTtce of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFOA) #14.267.

Area sen/ed: Rockingham, Strafford & Merrimack Counties; a minimum of frfty'lhree (53)
individuals will be served. ,

■  In the event that Ihe Federal funds become no longer'available, Generail funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Resoectfuily submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht DtparU\tenl e/WfollA ond Hnmon S<rvint' Miuion is to join cotiimnnhits ond familto
ifi firovidiit^ oppo'tuflid'ti (or dlUcnt to achieve health ond independence.
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FORM NUMBER P07 (vealon 5/8/1$)
Subjeci; COPl'DimmcfCftK.CRH/CCFH Pcmvincm Suptwnive Houiing Eieinilon Promm. SS.2Q2Q.BHS.04.Ptnnft^?

Notke: This egrccmcni ond all of iis aiiachnienu shall become public upon submission lo Governor end
Executive Council for approval. Any inrormotion ihai is private, conndeniial or proprieiary must
be clearly idcniiried to the agency and agreed to in uTiting prior to signing ihc contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Conincior hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Sine Agency Name
NH Dcpanment of Health and Human Services

1,2 State Agency Address
129 Pleas^i Street
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Coniroctor Name

Cross Roods House, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Porumouth, NH 03801

1.5 Comraetor Phone

Number

603-436-2218

1.6 Account Nurober

05.95-42-4230ll>-7927-

102.300731

1.7 Completion Date

/uly3i,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$383,020

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White. Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-27I-963I

I.I I Contncior Signature 1.12 Nanf)e and Title of Conmctor Signatory

1.13 Acknowtcdgcment: Staieof /UH .County of ffvOCKaV^KA-rrs

On CTu^l iPlR , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person ido^^d ijaQ Jc^^li". or^a^octorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block i. 11. and acknowledged (hat s/hc ex this docsment in ih^tmocity
indicated in block 1.12. M a. .. ̂ Q.

V/1. 13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ISeal)

1.13.2 Name end Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

QLCheSTTC*^ ^3crvf^^^^
l.li I cure

1.16 Approval by f^.r^H. Dcpanment o( AdminiJ

By:

LIS Name and Title of Stoic Agency Signatory p.

o..cUl7!jn\^ lll< K^yil.
Adminisiniion, uivision of Personnel (ifepplicahle) ^ . i

Director, On:

1.17 Approvol by ̂ Anoroey General (Form. Substance ar)d Execution) (i/opplicobUJ

By:

1.18 Approval Gothe

Bv:

On:

r and Executive .Council (if epplicoMe)

On:

Page I of4
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3. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVtCES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New Hampshire, acting
ihrough the agency ideoiined in block l.i ("Stole"), engages
controctor tdenlincd in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, (he work or sale of goods, or
both, idcniiricd and more particularly described in (he attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.'
3.1 Notwiihstending eny provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Eaeeuiive Council of the State of New HBmpshirc, if-
•pplieabte, this Agreement, and all obligaiions of the panics
hcrcunder, shall become c,ITective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreenseni as indicated in
block 1.18, unless rto such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become cITcciivc on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
I.UC'Efrective-Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EITcciive Date, alt Services performed by the Contractor.prior
to the Effective Date shall be perfonncd at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the cvcnt'that this Agreement does not .
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without liinitaiion, any obligation lo pay
(he Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pcrformcif.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Osic
specified in blKk 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL Nature OF agreement.

Notwiihsianding any provision of this Agreemetv to the
contrary, all obligations of (he State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued approprialion
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hcrcunder in excess of such available appropriated .
funds. In the event of a rcduciion or icrminaiton of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds beeome available, if ever, and shall
have the right to icrminatc this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall r>oi be required to transfer funds from eny other account
10 the Aceount ideniincd in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price,-method of payment. ar>d terms of-
payment ere ideniincd and more paniculariy described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporsicd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of (he conrraci price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursemeni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incuned by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compcnsaiion to the Contnetor for the Services. The State
shall luvc no liability to (he Contractor other than the eonmci
price. '

Page

S.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agrccrficm
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-€ or any other provision of law.

- S.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
mode hcrcundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND regulations/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance.of ihc Servicci.'lhe
Contractor shall comply with all siaiutet. laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, counry or municipal authorities
wftich impoK any obligation or duiy upon the Contractor,'
ineiuding.-bui not limited to. civil rights and equal oppoAuniiy
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with'communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing ar>d, speech, can
communicate with, receive infonmaiion from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with alt applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicanrs for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin artd will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Slates, the Coniracior shall comply with all the.
provisions of Executive Order No. I 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opporrunity"-). as supplemenied by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Paji 60). and with any rulers, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Conirtctof further agrees (o
pemui the State or United States access io any of the
Contractor's books, records end occounis for (he purpose of
asccnaining compliantte with all rules, regulations end orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions pfthis AgKcment.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that ell personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, ond-shall be properly
licensed ar>d oihcrwisc authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall rrai ptrmit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with .whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, odminlsiration or performarwe of this

2of4

Contractor Initials ̂  , .
Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

•  DocuSign Envelope ID: C5De9049-l627-4O6E-A269-0>77F531COeD

Agreemcni. This provision thill survive icrminaiion of ihis
Agreement.

7.) The CoouaciingOfTieer ipecifted in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be ihe Slate's representaiivc. In (he event
of arty dispute cortccming ihc interpretation of this Agrecmcni,
the Contncling Officer's decision shall be final for the Suie.

B. EVENT OF DEFAULTfREMEOIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following ocu or omissioru of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdcfault hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services ssiisfseiorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant. Ifim or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may uke any one. or more, or-all. of the following actions:
8.2. i give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the £vcm
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date nfihe notiec; and if the Event of Default is
not limely remedied, tcrminaie this Agreement. cfTcetivc two
(2) days aRcr giving (he Contractor notice cftermihstion;
8.2.2 givc ihe Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contraci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid 19 the Conirecior;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages (he State suiTcrs by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 ffeot the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/
preservation.

9.1 As used in [his Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and ihings deveioped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited 10, all studies, repons..
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic rcprescniaiioru, computer programs, computer
printouts, rsotcs. letters, memoranda, papers, end documents,
all whether Hnishcd or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which hos been received from

- the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be ihe property of the State, and
shall be returned to the .State upon dcmond or upon
(ermjnaiion of (his Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H; RSA .
chapter 9)-A or other existing law. Disclosure of dota
requires prior wrinen approval of the State.

Page

10. TCkiMINATION. in ihe event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reoson other ihon the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTiccr, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report fTermination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price camed. (o
and including the date of icrminatioa The form, subject
nutter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical 10 those of any Final Report,
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

(he pcrrermancc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neilher an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither'the Coniracior nor any of iu
officera. employees, ageni> or members shall have authority to
bind ihc State or receive any bcnerus, workers' compefisaiion
or other etnolumems provided by the State to iis employees.

12. assicnment/delccation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior vrtltten notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior wniten
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Conuactor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofTiccri and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Sute, its officers arxj employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its offKcrs
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on accouitt of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to ariK out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor.'Noiwiihjunding the foregoing, nothing herein
conuined shall be decmed'to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Siotei which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Sute, Th'is covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive ihc icrminatlon of this Agrccmeni.

14. mSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, 11 its sole expense, obuin.and '
maintain in-force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liabiliry insurance against alt -
claims of b^ily injury, death or property damage, in amounis
of not less than Sl.OOO.OOOper occurrenec and S2.000,000
aggregate ; and

■  14:1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ell
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less lhan SO*/* of the whole replKcment value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Irisurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Sute of New
Hampshire.

3of4
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14.3 The Conrrecior shell fumish'to the ContraeiingOrTiccr
tdentiried in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a cersiricaic(s)
of insurance for all insuiancc required under this Agree menu
Conirsetor shall also furnish to (he Coniraciing Officer
idcniiricd in block 1.9. or his or her tueeetsor, certificaie(s) of
insurance for. all rcncwal(s) ofirtsurBnce required under (his
Agrcemeni m later ihan thirty (30) days prior (o the cxpintion
date of each of (he insurance policies. The ccrtirica(e(s) of
insurance'and any renewals ihereofthall.be oioched and ore
incorporated herein by reference. .Each certiricatc(s) of
ir\suranee shall contain a elause requiring (he insurer to
provide the Contracting OITicer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than (hirry (30) days prior writien
notice of canccltation or modiricationof the potiey.

1$. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

13.1 By signing this sgtccmcni, the Concncior agrtes,
ceniftcs and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt (rom, the requircmcnis of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compeuoiion ").
H.i To the extent the Conrractor is subject to the
rcquiremenu of N.H. RSA chapter 28! -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or-SLSsignee lo.secure
amd maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which (he person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
^imish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her sucecssor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
nunner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
appltciblc rcncv'a!(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall noi be
responsible for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefii for Contractor, or
any subconcrector or employee of Contractor, which might
iriK under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the.
Services under this Agreement.

16. waiver OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof oRcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights wlih regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express'
failure to enforce any Evcni of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the righi of the State to enforce each and all of the ,
provisions hereof upon any further or other Evcni of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE- Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an insmrmeni in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after opprovat of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
'Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, nile or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agrcemeni shall be corvsirucd in accordance with the
laws of (he Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to^the benefit of the panics and (heir respective
successon and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
Is the wording choKn by the pa/tics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of consthKiion shall be applied against or-
in favor of any parry.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third psniet and this Agreement shall not be

construed to confer any such bencAi.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrccmcm
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inierpreiaiion,.construction or meaning of (he '
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiciqnil-provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILtTV. Inihc event any of (he provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be conoary to any state.or federal law, the rcnuining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
efrcci.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which rhay
be executed in a number ofeounicrparu, each of which shall
be deemed an originaj, constitutes the entire Agreement and
undcratandlng between the parties, and superaedet all pnor
Agreements and undcrsiartdings' relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent SuppoHlve Housing Expansion Program

i. Provisions Aopllcable to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ton (10) days of the contract effective date: submitted to:

NHOHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

.1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General.
Court or federal or state court or^ders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
Stale, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service prionties and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so es to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreerrvent. the Department has identiried the Contrector as a
subrecipient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding (he confidenliality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 57d.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General.
3r>d the Compironer General of the Uniied Stales, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant. In orde'r to make audits, exarninatlons.
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and s.tate financial and confidentiality lavs^.
and agrees to comply vnth the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed ih the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 end 24 CFR. Pad 576: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. AH programs.shall be licensed to provide client level data into.the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Information required for dala entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K (or Inlormation Security'requirements ar>d Exhibit .! for Privacy
requirements. ^

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer ell questions, related to. this contract, of
representatives of (he Slate or Federal agencies' who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing arnJ
maximum self-sufficiency. ■
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2. Scooe of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program; Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program.- in accordance with CoC Inierim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permartenl Supportive Housing Expansion Program delivering
sc8tlored>siie. long-term, tenani-base'd. rental assistance- and supportive services to at least
twcnty-eight (28) chronically homeless (CM) and disabled adults in Eastern Rockingham.
Slrafford. and Merhmack Counties, .and which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Uliliiation oI the 'Housing First' model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not Irhposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project particlpallon for
the most severe reasons, once available oplions have been exhausted to help a partidpant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The developrrvent of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, el a-minimum, annualfy. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive.
Services is-required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the partldpanl In obtaining Ihe
skins necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The •Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds ere used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUO and BHS to determine Contractor requirement complianco. including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintairi records that
establish 'at risk.of homelessness" status of each irxJivldual or family who receives CoC
homelessness preveniion assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of-Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as definod
In 24 CFR 578.S1(c)(3). The Conlraclor shall retain documenialion that Includes, but is-not
limited to: ' .

2.3.1.3.1 The original IndderKe of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program'participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a.victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
paslorai counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; .or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
■occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belie! of immineni threat ot further dorhestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which vyould include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written

- observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
.  victim service provider, social worker, legal assistarice provider, pasioral counselor,

mental health provider, or other professional frorn whom (he victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication.records from the perpctralor-of (he
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the N^onco, including
emoils. votcemalls. text messages', and social media posts; or a whiten certification by
the program participant to vrhom the violence occurriad or (he head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an oc'cupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

-  2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUb and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e!g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for (he assets held by (he
program participant and Income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent (hat source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a.
relevant'third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of (he income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verificatiori are unobtainable, (he
written certification by the program participani of the amount of Income (hat the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homeiessness. status or at-risk-of-
hometessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participani that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The sen/Ices and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
(hat the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment o,l services for those program
.participants that remain in the program for more than a year'and adjusted the service'
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
.CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

.2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of sujvo'f've services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must* keep documentation (hat these records were reviewed at least annually
and (hat the service package offered to program participants was edjusied as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor Shall maintain records that document.compiiance with:

2.4.1. The Ofoanlzatlonal conflicl-of-inleresl requirements i/t 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-oMnterest reQuirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts reouirements In 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor ehall develop, implement and relein e copy of Iho pereonol connict-of*inlorosl policy
that complies with the requirements in 24.CPR 578.95, including records supporting any exQeptions
to (he persona) conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply arid retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1.^ The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b):

2.6.3. Affirmativetv Furthertno Fair HOusinq bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c):

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements In 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUO: and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of ail procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement ReQuirements in 24 CFR 65.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to me8tir>g specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
. ■ data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and Implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuurfi of Care funds
•  shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the

operation of the project; and . .

- 2.7.3. The address or location of any housir>g of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipfeni and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidenlldfity.

2.iB. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopyirtg, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds ard
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless .records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to stale or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Repoftino RoQulroments

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPR): Within thirty.(30) days after the Contract/Grant Corhplctlon
Dale, an APR shall t>e submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in .particular hovy the Contractor is carryihg.out the project in the manner
proposed in. the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscat year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or speciFied by the State, and
subrhitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A: and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State .in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend aD meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS ot any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Porformance Measuros •

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
Applicalion #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by (he performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations Including, but not limited to. (hose outlined in 24 CFR Part 576: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law.102'550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Adminlsifaior of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The (^ntractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 576 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permar>enl housing program as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.-

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are noi limited to:

6.2.1.1. Up to eighty-five percent (65%) of participants remain-in permanent housing (PH) as of the
end of the operating year;

6.2.1.2. Ninety percent (90%) of participants, age eighteen (18) years and older, maintain or
increase their total cncome at the end of (he operating year or program exit.

6.3.. The Contractgr shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A. . *
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METHOD AND CONDtTIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Heuslno Expansion Pfooram Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of ihis Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursueni to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees.to pay the Cont/aciof an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.8. Price Limitation and for the time period specined below.

•1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/dr by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Gram Number: NH0095L1T001803

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Developmeni (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title; Continuum ol Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

1.2.7. Total Amouni Continuum of Care;

1.2-.7.1. Augusll. 2019-July 31. 2020. not to exceed $383,020

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $68.3.54

1.2.8.2. Rental Assistance: $305,736

1.2.0.3. Administrative Expenses: $8,930

V2.8.4. Total program amount:. $383;a20

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $97,988

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliar>ce with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As pan of the perlormance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the follqvnng:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report; The Audited Financial Report shad be prepared in accordance
■ with 2 CFR part 200,.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited nnancial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH OHHS

' Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301
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•  2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Granl funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.'

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200. the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United Stales in 'Standards for Audit of Covemmentai
Organizations. Program Activities, and Funclions.' within ninety (90) days after ContracVGranl
completion dote.

3. Pfoloct Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the Slate

3.1. Project Costs: As used in Ihis Agreement, the term 'Project Costs* shall mean all expenses
directly or indireclly incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Project. Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public Law
102-5SO as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time, and with (he rules, regulations, and guidelines established by (he State., Nonproflt
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Cere funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing: transitional housing: supportive services only: HMIS: and. Irt some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are ellgibte for all components. All components are subject to
(he restrictions on combining funds for certain eligibie aciivii'tes in a single project found In 24
CFR 578.87(0).

3.3. Match Funds:'

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and polides described in'24 CFR 576.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all granl funds, except for leasing funds, wilh rw less lhan
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or In-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of ecllvlties that are eligibie under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. isdaintain records of the source and use of conuibulions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 57.8.73:

3.3.3.2. Ensure records Indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
conlribulion is counted:

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived: and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The Slate agrees to provide payment on e cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for (hose c6sts designated as eligible and
allowable costs as slated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit 8. The Contractor must
have written approval from me State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount.as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUO under the provisions of Public

-  Law 102-5$0 and other applicable regulations. ;

3.4.4.- Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. -Department of Mousing and Urban Devfelopment Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Houslr^g
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
•and lime period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 6.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement reguesis for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
- request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month.
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for

•. the amount of each requested disbursement along with e payment request form
and any other dtkumentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the O}ntracior.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

I

houslnQSuoDor1sinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additlor^at
■financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, termination Report or Audited-Financial Report, the Stale may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the Slale shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
10 be ellowable or are determined to be in excess ol actual axpenditures. and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall Vefuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject (0 recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of non-compiiartce with
any Federal or Slale law. rule or regulation appHcable to the services provided, or If the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed In Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with (he terms and conditions of (his Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Nptwiihslanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of t>oth parlies and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approvel of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense EllglblUtv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shad utilize
Contiriuum of Cere program funds specified In this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Oooratino Expenses:

5.2.1. Etigiblo operating expenses inctude:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on.the useful life of (he system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (SO) percent of the unils or
area Is paid for with grant funds:

5.2.1.5. Utilities, Including'electricity, gas and water: and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operatir>g costs in the same project:

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency .shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

-  5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
.  the houstng.are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDDOrtive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costsmust comply with at! HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to Individuals actively participalir>g In the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall Include: ,

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
•  578.53(8) (2):

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-timo moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company:

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monlioftng the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participanl(s) are eligible cosls;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, arni providing child-
care vouchers,.for children from famiiies experiencing homelessness. including
providing meels and snacks, and comprehensive and.coordinated developmental
activities ere eligible:

5.3.2.5. Education Services.. The costs of Improving kr>osvledge and basic oducationai
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job (raining. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online end/or computer Insiruclton. on-the-job instruction,, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. . Food. The cost of prov'iding meals or groceries (o program,participants is eligible;

' 5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs qf assisdng eligible program
pahicipants (o locate, obtain, and retain suitable housirtg are eligible; ■

;  5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person('s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters (hat interfere with homeless individual or family's ability'

'  to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost, during course of physical or mental

. illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, -and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are (he budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrilioh, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

'5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions: counsefirrg; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions: the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about (he
use end management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
. medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

-  '5.3.2.13t. Outreach Serv'rces. The-costs of activities to engage persons for (he.purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible:

5.3.2.14. Sub.stance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group end individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpalient deloxiflcation end other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15); ^
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5.3.2.16. Ulility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service descnbed in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) • (16)
of this section Is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipieni. eligible
costs for those services are described In 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under (his section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Gere program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional llcensure or ceniflcettons
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special poputaiions. All eligible costs are eligible to the same exieni for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIVfAlOS; end victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or

'  stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot bo provided (o a program parlicipant who'is already receiving
rental assisiance. or who Is living in a housing unit receivirtg rental assistance or operating

' assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered In accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set fodh in 24 CFR S78.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be: .

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. ■ Medium term, for 3-24 months; or . .

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for lof>ger than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent'may be provided to the landlord, in addition -
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rerila) assistance wilt only be provided for a unit if the rent Is reasonable. -a's determined
by iKe Contractor, in relation to rents beirtg charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking Into account the localion, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and'maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a.program participant. For Leasing funds
only; Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing musi be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes. licensing
requirements, the Lead-Bawd Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other

- requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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■  5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of thefollowing types of rental assistance; Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assisiance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in v^ich program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supporttve services, recipients and subreciplents may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their enlire period of
peniclpetion, or in e apecific structure for the hrat yeer end in e specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Rei-Housing program component must be
tenant based rentarassistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based' rental assisiance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private.-nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through e contract with the owner of
'  an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to

program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assisiance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year.

,  which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiretion for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible adrininistralive costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use fundirtg awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administralive costs related to the planning and execution of Qonlinuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead cosis.directly related
to carrying out activities eligibid under 24 CFR 578.43 through.578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part o1 those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitorin'o dhd evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following;

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of (he staff of the contractor's, or other staff
. engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. in charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities v^lh regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignmenis. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules. -and amendments to
Ihose budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems lor assuring compliance with progrem
requirements; /

.  5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipienis and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to (he program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating (he solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other docurhenls directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against staled objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary-responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.6. above, Exhibit 8.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred (or official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third .party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal, services,
acdounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and sen^ices as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurartce, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providir>g
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attendir)g HUO-

^  Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings;.and
5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out (he environmental review

responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasino:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of (he costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons (or up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to tease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organi2ation(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns (fie structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1.. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or slAicture?. the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for

■ comparable units, taking into account the location, size,-type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not Qxceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are Included In the rent, these utilities may
be'paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a. supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use granl
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount riot to exceed 2 months of actual

■  rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
■ addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's reni.

5.8.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy-agreements and subleases
are required a^specified in 24 CFR 578.77{a).

5.8.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program'parllciparits must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578'.77.

5.6.1.7. Program .ItKome. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to'24CFR 576.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to,
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of reni paid with grant furyJs may not exceed HUD-determined fair
marttel rents.

5.6.1.11. The Cor^tracior shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing cosls.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already ovms to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be In compliance with all Stale arxJ local housing codes. licensing
requiremenls. the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurlsdiciion in which the housing Is located regarding the
condit'ion of the structure arxJ operatior) of the housing or services.

\
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heal, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in KUO regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleanir>g, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall.have any staff.charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Ceritractof PInanelal Manaoomont Svstom

6.1. Fiscal Control; The Contractor shall estat)lish Hscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper, disbursement of. and accbunling tor. grant funds and any repuired
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a nnancial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200'or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

CooUactors Obligoiions: The Contraaor covenants end agrees thai all funds received by (he Contractor
under the Contract shall bo used only es payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants end
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Lews; If the Contractor Is permittad to determine the eligibility
of indivtduels such eligibilily deierminalion shall be made In accordance with appiicabio federal end

■ stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Datermlnatlon: Eligibility dolormlnatlons shall ba made on forms provided by
the Oepertment for that purpose and shall be made end rerriade at such times as are prescribed by
the Oepertment.

3. Documonietlon: In eddlUon to the dctermir\ation forms required by ihe Oepartmeni, the Contractor
shall mamlain a data file on each recipisni o( services hereunder. which Tilo shall include aD
Information nocessary lo'support an eligibilily datorminaiion and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regardirig eligibility determinations (hat the Ooparvneni may request or require.

4. Fair Hoartngs: The Contractor understands (hat ell applicants (or services hereunder. as well at
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The,
Contractor hereby covenants ar>d agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Depahmenl regulations.

&. Gratuities or Klckbacko: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gretuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In ordo.r to influonco the performance of the Scopo of Work detailed in Exhibit A of (his
Contract. The .Slelo may teiminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It Is
determined that paymenis, oratullles or offers ol employment of any kind wore offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut>Con(roctOf.

6. Retroactive Peymente: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the ConlracI or inany
other document, cbntract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no paymenis will be made hereunder to rcimburso the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or-for any services provided to any irtdividual prior tq (he Effective Date of the ConlracI
and 00 payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor (or any services provided
prior to the date on ̂ Ich (he individual ap^sUes for servlco.s or (except as oihorwiso provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determlnation that the Individual is oiigiblo for such sendees.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwfthsldndir^g anything to the contrary contained in the Contract.nothing
herein contelned shall be deemed to obligare or require the Department to purchase services '
hereunder at e rate which reim^rses the Contractor in excess of (he Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable artd necessary to ossuro (ho quality of such sorvico. or at a
rate which exceeds (he rale charged by the 'Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or eher receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Dopartmoni shall determine that tho Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment .
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates .charged by the Contractor to inoiigiblo individuals
or other third parly funders. the Doportmoni may elect iq:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rales shall be established: .
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor (he amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs; /uylQ
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7.3. Demand repayment of (he excess payment by (ho Coniraclor in which avartl failure (o make
such ropoymor>l shaO constitute an Eveni ol Oefauil hereunder. When the Contractor is
permlned to determine the eligibility of indlviduais for seA^cos. the Contractor agrees to
reimburse (he Department for ell funds paid by the Oepanmeni to the Coniraclor for services
provided to any individua) who is found by the Department to be inelrgibte for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established heroin.

RECORDS: f^AINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. fiflathienencD of Records: In addition to the eligibility records speciried above, the Conirector
covenonts end agrees to maintain tha rottowing records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documsnls and other data evidencing and reflecting a!) costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of (ho Contract, end all
income received or codecled by the Contraclor during the Contract Penod, said records to be
maintalrred In eccordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiemiy end
properly refled all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, wllhoui llmllation. all lodgbrs; books, records, and original evidence of costs such as'
purchase reqirfsitions arid orders, vouchers, requisitions for malerlals. inventories, valuations of
in-kirtd contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Slotislicei Records: Stai'Slicai. enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include el) records of applicaiionond
eligibility (Including ell forms required lo determine eligibility lor each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services end atl invoices submined to (he Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3.. Medicel Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Coniraclor shall reiairi medical records on each patient/recipieni of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shell submit ar> annual audit to the Department within '60 days after tho closp of the
egency fiscal year. It is recommended (hat the report be prepared In eccordance with the provision of
Offico of Management and Budget Circular A-i 33! "Audits of Stoles. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for. Audit of Govemmenlal Organizations.
Programs. Aciiviiies end Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
ihey pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the lorm of (his Contract and the period for relonlion hereunder. Iho
Departmeni. the Uniie'd States Department of HeaRh and Human Sorvices. and any of (hair
designated reprosenlativos shall have access to at! reports and records maintained pursuanl lo
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. "Audil Liabilities: in addition to and r»oi in any way in (imiiaticn ol obligations of the Contract, it is
understood artd agreed by the Contractor (hat the Contractor shall be held liable for any stale
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to (he Department, ail payments made under tha
Contract lo which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Recorda: AD informoiion, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In conneclion with the performance of (he services and the Conirscl shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and (he regulations of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the adminislration of the services and Iho Contract; end provided fuilhor. that
the use or dtsdoauro by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
direcOy coor^ected with the adminislration ol the Departmeni or the Coniractor^a respo<tsib3ilio5 with
respect lo purchased services hereunder is prohlbiiod except on wrinon consent of (he recipient, his
atlorr>oy or guardian.

EiNoiiC •Spoda) Provbioru Cor^tracior tnlUeil

P«e«2ors Oat



DocuSign Envelope ID; 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; CSDE9049-1627-406E-A269-0177F631CDEO

Now Hampshire DopartmonI of Hoalth'ond Human Services
EihlbltC

Notwithstanding anything to (he contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions conialr>od in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of (ho Conirecl for any reason whatsoever.

11. Roperts: Fiscal and Statistical: The Controclor agrees (o submit the following reports el the following
times if requested by Ihe Department. ■
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Wrinen interim financial reports coniaining a detailed description of

-  all costs and non-aliowabie expenses incuned by (ho .Contractor (o the date of the report end
containir^g such other information as shell be doomed satisfactory by (he Departrhent to.
(usUfy the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall bo submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A rmal report shaU be submitiod within thirty (30) days after the ond of thb (arm
of Ihia Contract. Tho Final Report shall be in o form satlsfoctory to the Oepartment ar\d shot]
contain e summary state'meni of progress toward goals and objectivos slated In (he Propose!
and olher Informalion required by the Oepanmani.

12. Completion of Services; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by Ihe Deportment ol (ho
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract end upon payment of. the price limllaiion
hareuoder. the Corttracl and all the obligations of (ho parties hereunder (except such obligalions as,
by the terms of (he Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the (errTunaiton of the Contract) shall termindto. provided however, thai if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Oepartmeni shaD disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shaD retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or lo recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other materials prepared
during or resulting from Ihe periormance of the services of the Contract sKai) include (hefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was Tinanced under e Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Oepartment of Health Qr\d Human Services, wilh funds provided in part
by the State ol New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. Ihe United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under (he contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before prinlirtg', production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyrighi ownership for any end oil original materials
produced, incJuding. but nol limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contraclwlthout
prior writlon opproval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Ccmpllanco with Lows and Regulations: In the operation pf any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
state, county and murucipal authotiiies and with any duection ol any Public Officer of officert
pursuant to laws which shall impose en order or duty upon (ha contractor with respect to the
operailon of (he fecility or the provision of Ihe services at such facility. If any goyemmenial license or
permit shell be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ell limes comply vriih (he terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees that, during the term of ihls Contract the facilities shall
comply wilh ell rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshalond
(he local fire protection agency, and'shall be In conformance with local building ar>d zoning codes, by
laws and regulations. I

16. Equol Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contrector will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) lo (he Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
recoivod a single award of SSOO.OOOor more.-lf the recipient receives S25.000or more and has 50 or

EsNSft C - Spsdal PnM»loft» Cof»»ctor InWsb _
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more employees. 11 will mainlain a current EEOP on file and submil an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that lls EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving loss than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the oward. the recipient will provide on
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is nol required to submil or mainlain an EEOP. Norv
profit organizaUons. Indian Tribes, and medical and .etfucational instiiutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certificalion form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: htip^fwvAv.ojp.usdoj/sbout/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Profldency. ond resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of timited English proficlor>cy (LEP). To ensure
compliance wtth the Omnibus Crime Control orxf Sofo Streets Act of'iSSd and Titlo VI of the Civil.
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must lakq reosonobie slops to ensure Ihal LEP persons have
meaningful acMSs to its programs.

18. Pilot Program fbr.Enhancomonl of Contractor Employee Whiatioblower Prctocliona: The
following shall apply to all cbniiacls that exceed (he Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000) .

Contractor Employee WMisTLEBioweR Rights and ReooiftEMErvT To inform Employees Of
wwsTLEBLOWER Rights (SEP 2013)

(e) This contract and employees working or^ this contrdcl will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in ihe'pilol program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Natior^al Defense Aulhorizalion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
•112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Coniractor shall inform its. employeos in wriling, in the predominant language of the worklorce,
of employee whistleblower rIghts'arxJ protecllons under 41 U.S.C. 4712. es described In section
3.008 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Coniractor shall insert the substance ol this clause. Including this porograph (c). in ail
subconlracis over the simpiified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
bul the Contractor shall retain (he responsibility and occounlability for the lunction(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's eblBty to perform the delegated
funclionfs). This is accornptished through a wriRen agreement that specifies ectivities end reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor end provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontrectof's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions es the Contractor end the Coniroctor Is responsible to ensure subcontrector compliance
with those conditions.

When the Controcior delegates o function to o subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foilowtng:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegalirtg
the function

19.2. Have a writlen agreement with the subcontractor that spocifies activities ond reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate ^

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ErfJbIt C - Special PrevtjioAS Contn>eio» intUaU - ■
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19.4. Provide lo OKHS an annual schedule kJenilfyinQall subconirBctors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when ihe subconiracior's portormanco will be reviewed

19.5. OHMS shall, si its discretion, review end approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are idenlined, the Contractor shgU
talre corrective action.

20. Contract Ooflnitlons:

20.1. COSTS; Shell mean those direct end Indiroci Items of oxponso determined by (ha Oeportmont
to be ellowable end reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounllng principles established
In accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2". DEPARTMENT: NH Ocpartment of Health and Human Services.

20.3. . PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall meon (ho document submitted by (he Contractor on a
form or forms reguired by (he Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provlded'by (he Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract end setting fonh ihe total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. tJNiT; For each service that ihe Contracior is to pro>4de to eligible individuats hereuixfer, shall
mean that period of time or that specified aciivity determined by (he Oepartmeni and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.'

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
. policies, etC/ are referred lo In the Contract, the said reference shall bo deemed to mean
all such laws, rcgulaiions. etc. as they may bo amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; Funds provided to the Coniractor under this
Contract'wIII not supplant ony existing (cderal funds available for these services.

ExNbll C - Sp*cl«) Provision) Contrsclor InlUah9^
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Rovlsions to Form P'37, Gorvoral Provtslone

V1. Soction 4. Condtlional Nature of AQraement. is feolaced aa follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OP AGREEMENT.

Notwilhslanding any provtaion of this Agreement to me contrery, eli obligBlions of the Slaio
•  ' , hereunder. Including without limlistlon, the continuance of payments. In wr>ole or in' port,

under (his Agreement are contingent upon continued opproprlotion or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action thai'reduces. eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avaDablllty of fursding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall Iho
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of e reduction, tennlnaiion or modrTicetion of appropriated or available fur^d^. the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The Stale shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agroemont
immediately upon giving Iho Contractor notice of such reduction,' termination or
modificalion. Tho State shot) not bo .required to iranslar funds from any other source or
accour>t into the Account($) ideniined in block 1.6 of tho General Provisions. Account
Number, or ony other account in the event funds arc reduced or unavailable. •

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amanded bv eddinp the foOnwInp language-
10.1 The Stale mey terminate the Agreemeni el ony lime for any reason, al the sole discretion of

the Slate. 30 days after giving, tho Contractor whRen notice lhai the Stale is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In (ho ovoni of early termination, tho Controctor shall, within. 15 days of rtotlce of early
termination, develop end submit to the Stale e Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including bul nol limited to. idaniifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to rheet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shaQ fully cooporotc with tho State and shaft promptly provide dolailod
Informelion to support (he Transition Plan incJudir>g. but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the (erminaiion of the Agreement artd Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of (he Transition Plan to the Stale

■.OS requested. ■

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
sorvicos under tho Agreement are ironsitloned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, (he Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupled delivery of services In (he Transition Plan. .

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying cfienis and other affected Individuals
about (ho transition. The Contractor shell include the proposed corhmunicaiions in 'its
Transilion Plen submined to the Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Oopartmont resorves tho right to oxteno (his agreement for up to two (2) additional yoors,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and epprovol of the Governor end Executive Council.

EjMM C-1 • Aavtjlona/gsceilon) lo Standam CenUeo LAngu«9« Cent/scior IntU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Wcnlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisiws of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free WorkpJaco Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C." 701 et soq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11. end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihefojiowing Certlficalion:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARtMENT OF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

I  •

This certificoUon is required by the regulations implementing Scions 5151-5160 of the Oaig-Free
Workpiace Act ol 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title v. Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The Januai^ 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by-grantees (arvJ by lnferer>ce. sub-granloas and sub
contractors). prior to' avvard. that they will moinlain o drug-froo workplace. Sociion 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a or8ntee.(and by inference, sub-grantees end sub-convactors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in iieu of certificates lor
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certiTcaUon. The certlficate set out below is a
moleriel represenlation of fact i/poh which reliance is placed when ihe agency ewards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shell bo grounds for suspension ol paymenis, suspension or
termination of granls. or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Conlrectors using this form should
Send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department,of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH0330V6505

1. The grantee certifies Dial it will Of will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by.
11 Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacluro. dislribuiion.

dispensing possession or use of a controiied substance Is prohibited In iho granioo's
• workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

prohibition;
1.2. Eslablishing an ongoing dmg-free owaroness program to inlorm employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining e dnjg-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rohabiliiaiion, and employee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties (hat may be imposed upon empioyoos lor drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in ihe performance of the grant be
given e copy of the stalemeril required by paragraph (a):

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilcn of
■  emptoymchi under tho gram, the employee will

1.4.1. Ab'ide by the terms of the slalamenl; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vioialion of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later ihao five calendar days after such
corivlcilon; . . •

1.5. Notifying the agoncy in writing, wriihin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparograph 1.4.2 from an employee or olherwiso receiving ecluBl notice of such convicllon.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nclice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the conviciod omployeo was working, unless the Federal agency

EiNbH 0 - CertincJtJon/xgefding Ofwg vendor Wit»i
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ha» dasigneted e conUal point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shell Include the
IdentiTicatiofl number($) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking ono of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparegreph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is'so convicted
1.6.1.' Taking appropriate personnel action against such an empioyoo. up to and including

termlnalicn, consistent with the regulremenls of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended: or

1.6.2.' Requiring such employee to panicipate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rohabllitdlloh program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slajo. or local hoatth.
law enforcement, or other approphatQ agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effon (o coriiirtua to maintain a drug-fraa workplace through
Implomonteiion ofperagrophs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3. 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insed in the space provided betow the sile(s} for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Fertormanco (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identiried hare.

Vendor Name: (^065 ROOtffc)

Om / Nome: ~ ~
Ttila:

.EmibiiO-Cantftcatton meenfing OfuQ Fr«t
Workglaca Roqul-Brnanu
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYfNG

The Vendor Ideniified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101 >121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbyir>g. and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further egrees-to have the Contractor's representalivo. as Identiried in Sections 1.11
end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fotlowtng Certiricalion;

r^'

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US department of education - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indiceto epplicable program coverod):
'Temporary Assistance lo Noody Families under TiUe 1V*A
'Child Support Enforcemenl Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX .
'Community'Services Block Grant under Tide VI ' ,
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certines, to the best of his or her krtowtedge.and belief, that;

1. No Federal epproprlaled funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, lo
any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congross. or an employee of e Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of eny Federal conlr8ci..conllnuation. ronowal. amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative egreement (and by specific menUon
sub-grantoo or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or ettompiing to influenco an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conlreci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub>grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying..In accordance with its Instructions, attached and kicntifled as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at ail tiorS (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, end cooperative agreements) end that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represontatlon of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certiflcolion is e prerequisite for making or enlerir>g into this
transaclion imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails lo ftle the required'
certiricalion shsfl be subject to a civil perNally of not less than $10,(X)0 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: QajOSS

CUi/h
Date ^ Name: ^frfe)n-^

Tiiie; C>iyq,c;#Of^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendot identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension; and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to ttavo tne Contraaofs '
roprosentalive, as idenlified inSectiOAs 1.11 end 1.)2 of the General Provisions oxeduie the folfowing
CortificaUon:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primafy perticrponi is providing the
certification sol out below.

2. The inabiltiy of a person lo provide the certification required below will not necessarily resuli In denial
of participaUon in this covored l/ansacllon. H necessary, the prospective participant sl^aD submit en
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or exptanatlorS will be
conskJerod In connection with the NH Oeparvneni ol Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
determination whether lo onler into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
partlcipani to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 'participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material represemalion of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS deterrrilned to enlcr into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospocOve
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in odd'ition lo other romodles
available lo the Federal Government. OHHS may terminale this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participanl shal) provido imrrtedialo wriiion notice lo Iho DHHS ogency to
whom this prt^sal (coniract) is submitted if at any time Iho prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5.. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended." 'ineligible.' 'lovyer tier covered
transaction.' 'pa/i'jcipant.* 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded'.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Oefinilions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pert 76. See the
anached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) lhal. should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lov>^r fier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partlclpaiion In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospeciivo primary partidpani further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wilMncfudo the
clause titled 'CertificaiJon Regarding Oeborment, Suspension, incltgibaify and Votuniary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* provided by OHHS, without modificeiion. In all lower tier covered
transactions end in all solicitations for lower tier covered Iransactior^s.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a .
lower tier covored transeciion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction.- unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participani may
decide the method and fraquency by which it dDiermirjcs the eligibility offis principals. Each

,  participant may. but is not required lo. check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require esiaWishmenl of a system of records
In order to fonder in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knovrtedge end

C*«bnP-C4rti/le*(lonR*g»ni!noO*&*^*'''-5mp*«»>on vendor miUna {/rt^^
And OUwr Ruponsibnity Mmm
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InformaUon of a participant is not required to exceed (hat which is normally possessed by a pnjdent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for irensactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these inslnjciions. if s perticipsnt in a.
covered transaction knowingly eniers into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, deberred. ineligible, or volunlarily excluded from participation in (his transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemmenl. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVEREO TRANSACTIOh/S
11. The prospective primory partidpam certifies to (he best of Its knowledge erxt belief, tnai it end its

principals:

11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed lor debermenl. decfered ineligible, or
volunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Fodcral department or agency.

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (conlract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crirnlnal offense in

S connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Fodpral or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receivir^ stolen property:

11.3.' are no! presently indicted (or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Slate or local) wilh commission of any of the offenses enumeratod-in paragraph (l)(b)
ol this certiftcation: end

11.4. have not within a three-year period precedirtg (his applicstion/proposai had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Slate or local) terminalcd for cause or default.

i

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an ex^a'natlon to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting (his lower tier proposal (contracl), the prospective lower tier parlidpanl. os

defined in CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it end Its principals:
13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed (or debarmenl. doclared Ineligibie. or .

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any (ederal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier parlicipanl Is unable (0 certify to any of (he above, such

prospective participant shall .attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

U. Tho prospective lower tier participant further agiees by submitting (his proposal (contract) thai It vrill
include this douse entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions end in all solicitations lor lovrar tier covered transactions.

VendorName: Koads

Name: (vri^r-4<-«q

Exhibit F - CeriiriuiiOA 0«b*nneni. Suioentlon Vendor initlois
And Othor Ritponpb^ity Mstion
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAJTH^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vertdor idemllied In SocUon 1.3 ol (he General Provisions agrees by signature ol the Contractor's
representative as tdeniined in Sections i.l t and Vt2 of the General Provisions, to execute the loiiowing
certihcalion:

Vendor will.comply. and will roQuire any fiut>grQntoos or subcontractors to comply, with any oppticabto
lederal nor>dischrWnetion requirements, which may Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Sale Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute, from discrimir^^ting. either in omptoymont procticos or in
the delivery ol services or benefils, on the basis ol race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
roquiros certain recipients to produce an Equal Erriploymeni Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672|b)} which adopts by
reference, (he ctvi) rights obligations of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of lodoral lur\ding urtdar this
statute are prohibited from discrimlnaUng. either in employment praclrces or in (ho delivery of services or
benefiis. on the basis of race, color, religion, naliortal origin, and'sex. The Act includes Equal
Employmont Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights fi£l ol 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in ony program or activity);

. (ho Rehabilitation Act ol 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emplo^ent end the delivery of
services or bencftls. in ony program or activity;.

• the Americans with Oisobilitios Act of 1^ (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
' dischmlnalion and ensures equal opportunity lor persons'^with disabilities in employment. Stale and local
government scrvlcos. public occommodetioos. commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661. 1663. 1665-86). which prohibils
discriminalion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Ago Disenminalion Act of 1976(42 U.S.C. Sooions 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of ago in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
ompioyment discrfminaUon;

- 26 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Departr^enl ol Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Progrems): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscnmlnat'ion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamenial princlplos and policy-making
criteria for partnerships wllh faith-based end neighbort%ood orgartlzalions; -

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treaimont for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whlsuoblower,protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Oofonsa Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2..2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisdobtower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certoin whistle blowing ecihrjiies in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The cerliflcaio set out below is a rriatoria) representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when (ho
agency awards the gram. False cetiificalioo or violdtion of (he ceriificailon shall bo grounds for
suspension of paymertts, susponsiort or tarmlnarior^ of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanmeni

EriMbnC
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In the event a Federal or State court or.Federa) or Siaio odmlnlstratlvc agency makes a Finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forvard e copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the eppliceble contrecling agency or division wllhin the Department of Health end Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Offrce of the Ombudsman.

.  <

The Vendor ideniiried in Section 1.3 of the Gor>oral Provisions agrees by signature of (he Contractor's
representative asldeniined in Sections 1.11 ana 1.12 of the General Provisions, to oxeCute the following
certlficaOon;

I. By signing end submitting this proposal (contract) (he Vendor agrees to comply with (he provisions
indicated above.

VcndorName: bC-C^S

Date T ' Name:

vj>rcc^c

EmbUG
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CERTIFtCATION REGAROtNQ ENVIRONMEKTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

public Lew 103-227, Pert C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994
(Act), requires thai smokir>g not be permined in any portion o' any indoor facility owned or leased or
. contracted for by en entily end used routinely or regutarty for the provision of hoellh. day care, education,
or library services to children under the age ol 16, if the services ore furtded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stole or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply lo children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by '
Medicare or Mediceid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with (he provisions or the law may result In the Imposition of e civil mor>eiary pcnotty of up to
S1000 per day end/or the ImposHion of an edmlnisirotive compliance order on tho rospo'nsible onlity.

The Vertdor ideniirted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of (he Contractor's
representative as idenlined In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the Gerteral Provisions, to execute the following
cortirtcaUon;

1. By signing and submittir>g this contracl, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicabia provisions of Public Low 103-227, Part C. known as tho Pro-Children Act of 1994.

vendor Name: Xmc.

sDiSe —,
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor idaniified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the AgroBment agrees (o
comply with Ihe Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security pi Individually Identifiable Health Infomialion, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subconlractors and agents of the Vendor thai receive. _
use or have access to protected.heallh information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of.Heaith and Human Services.

(1 Oaflriltlons.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the lerm "Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
pf Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Enlitv' has Ibe meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

•Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in45CFRS0Clion.l64.5O1.

V

e. AQoreQation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

I  -Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitieXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestmeni Acl of
2009.

h. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accounlability Acl of 1995. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Idenlifiable Health
information. 45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto,

1  'Individual* shall have the same meaning as the lerm 'Individuarin 45 CFR Section 160.10^3
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

]. ■ 'Pfivacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HiPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

K  "Protecied Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information* In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limiied to the Informailon created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. "

. HaxMi lAsur»ne* PorlAMtCy AO'
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I. "ReQuired bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law' in;45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall mean the Secretary,of the Departmenl of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Heelth Information' meens protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is de.veloped.or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p.' Other Definitions ■ All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall, not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but .not limited to all

'  Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For (he proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. ' As required by law. pursuant to (he terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for (he he^lt^care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third pany. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from (he third party that such PHI will be held conndentlaily and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
discJosed to the third party; and (ii) on agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of (he confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying.
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity ot^jects to such disclosure, the BusinesiBusines^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
rerrtedies.

B. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional reslriclions over and above those use's.or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant lo the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such edditional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblloattons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Eniity:s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected •
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b  The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to; '

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-ideniification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or lo whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether ihe.proteclcd health information was aclually acquired or viewed
0  The extent lo which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall compleie the risk assessment within 4B hours of the
■breach and immediately report the findings of the ri sk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply vrith all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. •

c.

d. Business Associate shall make available ail of its internal pciidBs and procedures, books
and records relating to the use end disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity lo the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HtPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere lo the same
restrictions and conditions on lhe use and disclosure ol PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (i). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving RHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph P13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.'.

1. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ell
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Enlity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associale's compliance with the terms of (he Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enliry.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wilhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
' obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity 'lo respond to 6 request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in.eccordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Enlity such information as Covered Enlity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45.CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall Within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity.' Covered Entity shall have the

.  responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wilhin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to e)ctend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and (imil further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes.lhai make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business^ n
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Associate maintains such PHI. IfCovered Entity. In Us sole discreiion. requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQattona of Covered Entity
V

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitalioh(8) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45. CFR Section
164:520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided 16 Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or

'  disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section •
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect-Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause"

In addition to Paragfeph iO of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a.brcach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a limeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither.iermination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIscollaneous

a. Dennltions and Reoutatorv References. All lerms used, but not olherwise defined herein,
shall.have the same nneaning as those lerms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security f^ule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity end Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA-. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resqived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security
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SeoreQatlon. If any term'or condition of (his Exhibit I or (he application (hereof (o any
person(s) or circuotstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Pr'ovisions in this Exhibit I regaiding the use and disclosure of PHI, relum or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Peragraph 13 of the
standard terms end corvdiiions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ihe parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmani ol Health ar>d Human Services Cy^0S5 Rood's
xtate

. JWl. .
Name of the Ventlor

Signature of AuTht^h^d Representative Signature of Aulhonzed Representative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Reprejentetive

umi
Date

Title of Authorized Representative

Date f
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $2S.OOO and awarded on or after October l. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut>grants of S2S.OOO or more. It the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincatlons result in a (olol sward equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requiromonts. ss of the date ol the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pah 170 (Reporting Subaward and Exoculiyo Componsailon information), the
Oepahmeni of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must repoh the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subjeci to the FFATA reponirtg requ'vomenis:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number lor grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS 0)
10. Total compensation end names of the top five executives If:

lO.V More lhan 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, end those
revenues are greater than $2SM ennuaOy and •

10.2. Compensation information is not already available Ihrough reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end ol the month, plus 30.days, in which
(he award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply vnih ihe provisions of
Tho Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Acl. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
ar)d 2 CFR Pah 170 (Reporting Subawaro arxJ Executive Compensation Information), artd further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and i. 12 of the General Provisions
oxocuto tho following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees io provide rteeded information as outlined above to the NH Oopartmoni
of Health and Human Services end to comply v^'th elJ applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountabiicty ond Transparency Act..

VendorNeme:

Q
.SfDrvc. ,

£xNt)U J - C<a1Ac«iIoa Rtgireing (he Paderti .. VeApor Inktsla
AcoounUbiOty And Tr»A»p«/ancy Act (FFATA) CompSance
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FORMA

As (ho Vertdor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify (hat the responses to the
bolow Usied questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your omity Is: /7/ 77V'?7y

2. In your business Or organization's preceding completed Rscdl year, did your business or organization
receive (1} 80 percent or more of your annual gross rovonue In U.S. lederai contracts, subcontracts,
loans, granls. sub-grants, and/or coopereilve agreements; and (2) S2S.000.000 or more in annual,
gross revenues fron^ U.S. fodoral conlrects. subcor^irocls. loans. gran(s. subgranis. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

' If (he answer to tt2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer (he foilowlrtg:

3. Does the pubt(c.have access to InformaUon about the compensation of the'cxecuiives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Aci of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Iniemol Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If (he answer to 03-above is YES. stop hero

If ihe answer to 03 above (s NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and componselion of the Five most highly compensated ofTicers In your business or
organization are es follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Nome:

Neme:

Amount:

Amourtl:

Amount:

Amour^t:

Amount: .

>er t)

E;iMMt J > CenlAcet'OA Raeanllno (h« Fadeni Fufttftng
Accountability And Trwupvancy Ad (FFaTA) CompGanca

Poe« 7^7

Vendor INUsls

Data•4^
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

V  'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acoulsition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons oiher than authorized users and for an other, than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Ideniifiabla
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,'* Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incideni* shad have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* in section twro (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Oeparlment

•  of Commerce. ^

3. 'Confidential Information* or 'Conrtdential Data'-means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Cese Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ell infonnaiion owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Oepartment of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, proiection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected' Health information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax. Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card .Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

I

•  4. 'End User' means any person or entity, (e.g., conlfactor. contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream'user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of (his Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
' regulations promulgated thereunder. «

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

. system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or .software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instnjction. or
consent. Incidents include (he loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or rT)isplacemeni of hardcopy documents, and misrouiing of physical or electronic

vs. L«il upOttd iCVOertS E;^ib>lK ConCdCtorl/itUM
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' moans any network or,segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hempshire's Oepehment of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be. considered an open
network arvd not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi. PF\.
PHI or confideritial OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or ••?!■) means informalion-whlch can be used to distinguish
or trace an Indrvidual's identity, such as (heir name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:t9. biometric records, etc.,
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and piece of bi/lh, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean (he Standards for Privacy bl Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 150 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protectipn of Electronic
Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Pari 184, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health lnfofmalion"me"ans Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard thai renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a starvfards developing organization (hat is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHMS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

.1. The Contractor must.not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
ot the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Conndential Information in response to a

vs. Lftii up4ai0i(yo9ne EiMUl K
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without Hrsl rrotifylng DHHS so (lUl DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions .over and above those .uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, trie Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation ot such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative'(here from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this .Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

' Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption.. If End User is transmitting OHHS- data containing
Conndential Data between apptications. the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices.. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as e thumb drive, as e method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used-and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Servicesi also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting senrices. such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidontlal Data via certified ground
mail wi^in'the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an.open
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wireless networtc. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communicailon. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or'iran&mli Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH Filo Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing ah SFTP to transmit Conndeniial Data. Er^d User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidentiat Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data wiit be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOStTION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor wilt only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: '

A. Releniioo

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply-in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. • The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide- security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department conndential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of ConrxJential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Conridential Data stored in a Cioud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with dll applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currenily<supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anii-spdm; anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intaisior^-detectlon and nrewa!) protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
■  sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure vripe program
In accordance wilh Industry-accepled standards for secure deletion end media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, '
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Conirector will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certlficaUon to the Departmerit.
upon request. The written certification will Include all delalis necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

' evaluated by the Slale and Contractor prior to destruction.

•2. Unless otherwise specified; within thirty-(30) days of .th© termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3, Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) 'days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor-agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure daia wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will mair)tain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collecied. processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential inforrriation throughout the Information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc:).
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3. The Conuactor wit) maintain appropriate authentication and. access controls to
contractor systems that collect, trarvsmit. or store Department confldenliarinronmation
where applicable. ^

4. The Contractor will er>sure proper security monitoring cepabiiiiies ere in place to
dotoci potentlel security events that can impact Stale of NH systems end/or
Department conridenlial inrormation for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor wit! provide regular secunty awareness and education for Its End
Users in support.of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-coniraciing any core functions- of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

"program of an inlernat process or processes that deHnes specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to secunty requirements that at a minimum
match'those for the Contractor. irx:tuding breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply witti all applicable.
State of New Hampshire-and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems-access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and m3inl3inir)g access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub^contractors prior to

'  system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR-160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with (he
agreement.

9. The Contractor wit! work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any Ganges in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed

.  annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
■  the Contractor., or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between-Ihe Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly. any-State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express wrinen consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach tiabilily. In the event of any secunty breach Contractor shall
.make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. I«lvp4«l»l0ros/18 V ConiroctsrlrtiOtls
OkhS i/ronna(ioA

Sacvlry
P«9«eof9 Osifl



DocuSign Envelope ID; 422CA629-48A8-4612-960D-564E60F05F7B

DocuSign Envelopo ID; C5DE9049-1627-406E-A289^177F63tCOED

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

•the breach, induding but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs arxf
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy arvj security of Confidential information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and securiry of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the lovol ond scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the PrlvacyAcl of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) (hat govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate.administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect (he conridenliality of the Conndential Data ar>d to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and

'  scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
..established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer lo Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.90v/doit/verKJof/index.hlm

**for the Oepartmeni of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer" and the
Slate's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a conndentl.al Information breach, computer

' security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes; any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to Ihe Slate of New Hampshire networV.

15. Coniractor must restrict access lo the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who nfeed such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection sviih purposes identified in this Contraci.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented lo protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conndential Information only if encrypted and being
sent (0 and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. timit disclosure of (he Conridenlial Information lo (he extent permitted by law.

1. Conridenlial Informaiion received under this Contract and individually
idenlinable data derived from OHMS Oat^, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologicatly secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door \ocki, card keys,
biometricldentifiers. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit (he Confidential Data, including any
dehvative files containing personally identifiable informaiion, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted .at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as. determined by a risk-based
assessment'of the circumstances involved.

1. understand thai iheir user credentials (user name and password) must not be

shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS .
reserves the right to conduct ensile inspections to monitor cornpllance with this
Contract, including the privacy end security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
end other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Conridenlial Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents 'arKi Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in

• Section VI.

f

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obtigaiions and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wit);

1. Identify tr)cidenls;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and
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5. Determine whether Sreach notificalion is required, and-, If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, -and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with nh RSA 359*C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: j

OHHSPrivacyOfficerQdhhs.nh.gov

B; DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSlnformalionSecurityOff1ce@dhhs.nh.90v
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